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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

☒ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024

OR

☐ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                 to                 

Commission file number: 001-41100

Everest Consolidator Acquisition Corporation
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

State of Delaware 86-2485792

(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

4041 MacArthur Blvd Newport Beach, CA 92660

(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

(949) 610-0835
(Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

Not Applicable
(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act:

Title of each class      Trading Symbol(s)       Name of each exchange on which registered 

Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share MNTN New York Stock Exchange

Warrants, each whole Warrant exercisable to purchase one share of Class A

common stock at a price of $11.50 per share

MNTN WS New York Stock Exchange

Units, each consisting of one share of Class A common stock and one-half

of one redeemable warrant

MNTN.U New York Stock Exchange

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter

period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.   Yes  ☒    No  ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the

preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files).   Yes  ☒    No  ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See definitions of “large

accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer”, “smaller reporting company” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
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Large Accelerated Filer ☐ Accelerated Filer ☐

       

Non-Accelerated Filer ☒ Smaller Reporting Company ☒

       

  Emerging Growth Company ☒

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided

pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).   Yes  ☒    No  ☐

As of December 1, 2023 May 10, 2024, there were 13,424,131 7,392,108 shares of the registrant’s Class A common stock and 4,312,500 shares of the registrant’s Class B common stock issued and

outstanding.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We intend

such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in Section 27A of the Securities Act of

1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). All statements other than

statements of historical facts contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may be forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements contained in

this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q include, but are not limited to, statements regarding our or our management team’s expectations, hopes, beliefs, intentions

or strategies regarding the future, including the consummation of the proposed Unifund Business Combination (defined below) and related matters. In addition,

any statements that refer to projections, forecasts or other characterizations of future events or circumstances, including any underlying assumptions, are

forward-looking statements. The words “anticipate,” “believe,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intends,” “may,” “might,” “plan,” “possible,” “potential,”

“predict,” “project,” “shall,” “should,” “will,” “would” and similar expressions may identify forward-looking statements, but the absence of these words does not

mean that a statement is not forward-looking. Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that may

cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by

the forward-looking statements, including, but not limited to:

● our ability to complete an initial business combination;

● our being a company with no operating history and no revenues;

● our ability to select an appropriate target business or businesses in our industry or otherwise;

● our ability to access additional sources of working capital and to continue as a going concern;

● our ability to source additional funds to satisfy income and tax liabilities;

● risks related to the material weaknesses identified in our internal control over financial reporting; reporting and the ineffectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures;

● our expectations around the performance of a prospective target business or businesses;

● our success in retaining or recruiting, or changes required in, our officers, key employees or directors following our initial business combination;

● our officers and directors allocating their time to other businesses and potentially having conflicts of interest with our business or in approving our
initial business combination;

● our ability to obtain a fairness opinion with respect to a target business, without which you may be relying solely on the judgment of our board of
directors in approving a proposed business combination;

● our issuance of additional shares of capital stock or debt securities to complete a business combination, thereby reducing the equity interest of our
stockholders and likely causing a change in control of our ownership;

● our ability to assess the management of a prospective target business;

● our ability to obtain additional financing to complete our initial business combination;

● the ability of our officers and directors to generate a number of potential business combination opportunities;
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● our ability to consummate an initial business combination due to the status of the debt and equity markets, and changes in laws or regulations,
including changes imposing additional requirements on business combination transactions involving SPACs and private operating companies and
the application of the 1% U.S. federal excise tax under the Inflation Reduction Act;
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● the risk of cyber incidents or attacks directed at us resulting in information theft, data corruption, operational disruption and/or financial loss;

● the liquidity and trading market for our public securities;

● our ability to maintain compliance with the continued listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market LLC;

● the lack of a market for our securities;

● the impact of any legal proceedings, investigations or inquiries instituted against the Company;

● our status as a an emerging growth company and a smaller reporting company within the meaning of the Securities Act;

● the use of proceeds not held in the trust account Trust Account or available to us from interest income on the trust account Trust Account balance;

● the trust account Trust Account not being subject to claims of third parties;

● the potential tax consequences of investing in our securities; or

● our financial performance.

The foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive. You should carefully consider the foregoing factors and other risks and uncertainties discussed herein in Part II,

Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” and in Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 December 31,

2023 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on March 30, 2023 April 16, 2024 (the “2022 “2023 Form 10-K”), and the preliminary

prospectus/proxy statement included in the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-273362) originally initially filed by the Company and the New

PubCo (as defined herein) with the SEC on July 21, 2023, as subsequently amended, on September 5, 2023, October 4, 2023 and October 20, 2023 and as

further amended from time to time, relation relating to the proposed Unifund Business Combination (the “Registration Statement”), and in our other filings with

the SEC.

The forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are based upon information available to us as of the date of this Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q, and while we believe such information forms a reasonable basis for such statements, such information may be limited or incomplete, and our

statements should not be read to indicate that we have conducted an exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all potentially available relevant

information. incomplete. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of our assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may

vary in material respects from those projected in these forward-looking statements. Investors are cautioned not to unduly rely upon these statements.

You should read this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the documents that we reference herein and have filed herewith as exhibits with the understanding

that our actual future results, levels of activity, performance and achievements may be materially different from what we expect. We qualify all of our forward-

looking statements by these cautionary statements. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. We

undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may

be required under applicable securities laws.
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ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EVEREST CONSOLIDATOR ACQUISITION CORPORATION

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

     September 30, 2023      December 31, 2022      March 31, 2024     December 31, 2023

(unaudited)    (unaudited)   

Assets                    

Current assets:                    

Cash $ 322,367 $ 236,151 $ 26,973 $ 103,976

Prepaid expenses   50,861   307,726

Total current assets   373,228   543,877   26,973   103,976

Marketable securities held in trust account   145,772,470   178,111,451   83,596,299   148,555,898

Total assets $ 146,145,698 $ 178,655,328 $ 83,623,272 $ 148,659,874

       

Liabilities, Common Stock Subject to Possible Redemption and

Stockholders’ Deficit        

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 2,855,259 $ 26,795 $ 3,950,511 $ 3,383,281

Accrued expenses 5,894,963 928,106   8,221,354   7,093,247

Loan payable - related party 1,870,000 —   3,777,500   2,752,500

Excise tax liability 410,576 — 1,082,317 410,577

Due to related party   60,000 — 120,000 90,000

Conditional guarantee liability 3,706,339 — 3,983,096 3,845,474

Income taxes payable 1,226,062 344,217 2,231,722 1,783,230

Total current liabilities   16,023,199   1,299,118   23,366,500 19,358,309

Deferred underwriting commissions   —   6,037,500

Total liabilities 16,023,199 7,336,618 23,366,500 19,358,309

 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 5)

   

Class A Common stock subject to possible redemption, $0.0001 par value,

13,424,131 and 17,250,000 shares at $10.84 and $10.30 redemption value as

of September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively   145,474,168   177,667,994

Class A Common stock subject to possible redemption, $0.0001 par value,

100,000,000 shares authorized; 7,392,108 at $11.14 redemption value shares

issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2024 and 13,424,131 shares at $11.01

redemption value shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2023   82,334,453   147,811,944

   

Stockholders’ Deficit:    

Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; none issued or

outstanding as of September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022   —   —

Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; none

issued and outstanding (excluding 13,424,131 and 17,250,000 shares subject

to possible redemption) as of September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022   —   —

Class B common stock, $0.0001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized;

4,312,500 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2023 and

December 31, 2022   431   431

Additional paid-in capital   —   —

Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; none issued or

outstanding — —

Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; none

issued and outstanding (excluding 7,392,108 and 13,424,131 shares subject to

possible redemption as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,

respectively) — —
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Class B common stock, $0.0001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized;

4,312,500 shares issued and outstanding   431   431

Accumulated deficit   (15,352,100)   (6,349,715)   (22,078,112)   (18,510,810)

Total Stockholders' deficit   (15,351,669)   (6,349,284)

Total stockholders’ deficit (22,077,681) (18,510,379)

Total Liabilities, Common Stock Subject to Possible Redemption and

Stockholders’ Deficit $ 146,145,698 $ 178,655,328 $ 83,623,272 $ 148,659,874

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed financial statements.

4

Table of Contents

EVEREST CONSOLIDATOR ACQUISITION CORPORATION

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(unaudited)

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,

For the three months ended

March 31,

     2023      2022      2023      2022      2024      2023

General and administrative expenses $ 3,187,663 $ 379,100 $ 10,400,770 $ 1,301,314 $ 2,062,840 $ 2,373,223

Loss from operations   (3,187,663)   (379,100)   (10,400,770)   (1,301,314)   (2,062,840)   (2,373,223)

Other income (expense):            

Investment income held in Trust Account 2,225,997 601,740 6,294,454 851,687 1,634,399 1,897,729

Interest expense (37,200) — (112,200) — (184,500) —

Conditional guarantee expense (139,134) — (3,706,339) — (137,622) —

(Loss) income before income taxes (1,138,000) 222,640 (7,924,855) (449,627)

Net loss before income taxes (750,563) (475,494)

Income tax provision (456,960) — (1,290,625) (109,576) (448,492) (382,013)

Net (loss) income $ (1,594,960) $ 222,640 $ (9,215,480) $ (559,203)

Net loss $ (1,199,055) $ (857,507)

Weighted average shares outstanding of Class A

common stock subject to possible redemption, basic

and diluted 15,669,750 17,250,000 16,717,461 17,250,000 11,104,122 17,250,000

Basic and diluted net (loss) income per share, Class A

subject to possible redemption $ (0.08) $ 0.01 $ (0.44) $ (0.03)

Basic and diluted net loss per share, Class A subject

to possible redemption $ (0.08) $ (0.04)

   

Weighted average shares outstanding of Class B non-

redeemable common stock, basic and diluted 4,312,500 4,312,500 4,312,500 4,312,500 4,312,500 4,312,500

   

Basic and diluted net (loss) income per share, Class B

non-redeemable common stock $ (0.08) $ 0.01 $ (0.44) $ (0.03)
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Basic and diluted net loss per share, Class B non-

redeemable common stock $ (0.08) $ (0.04)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed financial statements.

5

Table of Contents

EVEREST CONSOLIDATOR ACQUISITION CORPORATION

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN COMMON STOCK SUBJECT TO POSSIBLE REDEMPTION AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

(unaudited)

Common Stock Subject to Common Stock Subject to

Possible Redemption Ordinary Shares Additional Total Possible Redemption Ordinary Shares Ad

Class A Class B Paid-in Accumulated Shareholders' Class A Class B

     Shares      Amount       Shares     Amount     Capital      Deficit      Deficit      Shares      Amount       Shares     Amount    

Balance - December 31, 2022   17,250,000 $177,667,994   4,312,500 $ 431 $ — $ (6,349,715) $ (6,349,284)

Proceeds from sale of private Placement

warrants   —   —   —   —   1,725,000   —   1,725,000

Balance - December 31, 2023   13,424,131 $147,811,944   4,312,500 $ 431 $

Accretion of trust earnings for Class A

Common stock subject to possible

redemption   —   3,200,188   —   —   (1,725,000)   (1,475,188)   (3,200,188)  —   1,696,507   —   —  

Net loss — — — — — (857,507) (857,507)

Balance - March 31, 2023 (unaudited) 17,250,000 180,868,182 4,312,500 431 — (8,682,410) (8,681,979)

Proceeds from sale of private Placement

warrants — — — — 1,725,000 — 1,725,000

Accretion of trust earnings for Class A

Common stock subject to possible

redemption — 3,384,604 — — (1,725,000) (1,659,604) (3,384,604)

Deferred underwriting fees waiver — — — — — 6,037,500 6,037,500

Net loss — — — — — (6,763,013) (6,763,013)

Balance - June 30, 2023 (unaudited) 17,250,000 184,252,786 4,312,500 431 — (11,067,527) (11,067,096)

Accretion of trust earnings for Class A

Common stock subject to possible

redemption — 2,279,037 — — — (2,279,037) (2,279,037)

Redemptions of Class A Common stock (3,825,869) (41,057,655) — — — — —

Redemptions of Class A Common stock

subject to possible redemption   (6,032,023)   (67,173,998)   —   —  

Excise tax — — — — — (410,576) (410,576) — — — —

Net loss — — — — — (1,594,960) (1,594,960) — — — —

Balance - September 30, 2023 (unaudited) 13,424,131 $145,474,168 4,312,500 $ 431 $ — $(15,352,100) $ (15,351,669)

Balance - March 31, 2024 7,392,108 $ 82,334,453 4,312,500 $ 431 $

Common Stock Subject to Common Stock Subject to

Possible Redemption Ordinary Shares Additional Total Possible Redemption Ordinary Shares Ad

Class A Class B Paid-in Accumulated Shareholders' Class A Class B P

     Shares      Amount       Shares     Amount     Capital      Deficit      Deficit      Shares      Amount       Shares     Amount     C
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Balance - December 31, 2021   17,250,000 $175,950,000   4,312,500 $ 431 $ — $ (4,790,107) $ (4,789,676)

Balance - December 31, 2022   17,250,000 $177,667,994   4,312,500 $ 431 $

Proceeds from sale of private placement

warrants   —   —   —   —   1,

Accretion of trust earnings for Class A

Common stock subject to possible

redemption   —   17,931   —   —   —   (17,931)   (17,931)  —   3,200,188   — —   (1,

Net loss   —   —   — —   —   (394,797)   (394,797)  — —   — —

Balance - March 31, 2022 (unaudited)   17,250,000 175,967,931   4,312,500 431 — (5,202,835) (5,202,404)

Net loss — — — — — (387,046) (387,046)

Balance - June 30, 2022 (unaudited) 17,250,000 175,967,931 4,312,500 431 — (5,589,881) (5,589,450)

Accretion of trust earnings for Class A

Common stock subject to possible

redemption — 408,584 — — — (408,584) (408,584)

Net income — — — — — 222,640 222,640

Balance - September 30, 2022 (unaudited) 17,250,000 $176,376,515 4,312,500 $ 431 $ — $ (5,775,825) $ (5,775,394)

Balance - March 31, 2023 17,250,000 $180,868,182 4,312,500 $ 431 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed financial statements.
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EVEREST CONSOLIDATOR ACQUISITION CORPORATION

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(unaudited)

For the nine months ended For the nine months ended For the three months ended March 31,

     September 30, 2023      September 30, 2022      2024      2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:                   

Net loss $ (9,215,480) $ (559,203) $ (1,199,055) $ (857,507)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating

activities        

Investment income held in Trust account   (6,294,454)   (851,687) (1,634,399) (1,897,729)

Conditional guarantee expense 3,706,339 —   137,622   —

Changes in operating assets and liabilities    

Prepaid expenses   256,864   210,612   —   106,438

Due to related party   60,000   11,711

Accounts payable   2,828,464   32,522   567,230   944,617

Accrued expenses   4,966,857   230,357 1,128,107 1,068,778

Due to related party   30,000   —

Income taxes payable 881,845 109,576   448,492   382,013

Net cash used in operating activities   (2,809,565)   (816,112)   (522,003)   (253,390)

   

Cash Flows from Investing Activities    

Investment of cash into Trust Account   (4,121,220)   —   (580,000)   (1,725,000)

Redemption of investments   42,754,656   — 67,173,998 101,748

Net cash provided by investing activities   38,633,436   —
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Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities   66,593,998   (1,623,252)

   

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:    

Proceeds from issuance of private placement warrants to Sponsor 3,450,000 —   —   1,725,000

Proceeds from promissory note - related party 1,870,000 — 1,025,000 —

Redemption of Class A shares subject to possible redemption (41,057,655) — (67,173,998) —

Payment of offering costs — (166,203)

Net cash used in financing activities (35,737,655) (166,203)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (66,148,998) 1,725,000

Net change in cash   86,216   (982,315) (77,003) (151,642)

   

Cash - beginning of the period 236,151 1,454,762 103,976 236,151

Cash - end of the period $ 322,367 $ 472,447 $ 26,973 $ 84,509

   

Supplemental disclosure of income taxes paid:

Income taxes paid $ 520,000 $ —

   

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing and financing

activities:    

Remeasurement of Class A shares subject to possible redemption $ 8,863,829 $ — $ 1,696,507 $ 3,200,188

Deferred underwriting fees waiver $ 6,037,500 $ —

Excise tax liability $ 410,576 $ — $ 671,740 $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed financial statements.
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EVEREST CONSOLIDATOR ACQUISITION CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

Note 1—Description of Organization and Business Operations

Everest Consolidator Acquisition Corporation (“SPAC” or the “Company”) is a blank check company incorporated in Delaware on March 8, 2021. The Company

was formed for the purpose of effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization, or similar business combination

with one or more businesses (the “Business Combination”). The Company is an emerging growth company and, as such, the Company is subject to all of the

risks associated with emerging growth companies.

As of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024, the Company had not commenced any operations. All activity for the period from March 8, 2021 (inception) through

September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 relates to the Company’s formation, activities necessary to prepare for its Initial the initial public offering (the “Initial Public

Offering (the Offering” or the “IPO”), and the search for activities necessary to identify a target company and prepare for an initial business combination. a

Business Combination. The Company will not generate any operating revenues until after the completion of its initial Business Combination, at the earliest. The

Company will generate non-operating income in the form of interest income on the proceeds derived from the IPO.

The Company has selected December 31 as its fiscal year end.

On November 29, 2021 (the “IPO Date”), the Company consummated the IPO through the issuance of 17,250,000 Units, including 2,250,000 Units sold

pursuant to the full exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option, with each unit consisting of one share of Class A common stock, and one-half of one
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redeemable warrant (the “Units”). Each whole Public Warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of Class A common stock at an exercise price of $11.50

per share. The Units were sold at a price of $10.00 per Unit, generating gross proceeds to the Company of $172,500,000, which is described in Note 3.

Simultaneously with the closing of the Initial Public Offering, IPO, the Company completed the private sale of 6,333,333 warrants (the “Private Placement

Warrants”) at a purchase price of $1.50 per Private Placement Warrant (the “Private Placement”), to Everest Consolidator Sponsor, LLC, a Delaware limited

liability company (the “Sponsor”), generating gross proceeds to the Company of $9,500,000, which is described in Note 4.

Transaction costs amounted to $10,431,114, including $6,037,500 in deferred underwriting fees, $3,450,000 in upfront underwriting fees, and $943,614 in other

offering costs related to the Initial Public Offering.

At As of the IPO date, a total of $175,950,000 of the net proceeds from the IPO and the Private Placement, which included includes the $6,037,500 deferred

underwriting commission, were placed in a U.S.-based trust account (the “Trust Account”) at Bank of America maintained by Equiniti Trust, LLC (f/k/a American

Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC), acting as trustee. Except with respect to interest earned on the funds in the trust account Trust Account that may be

released to the Company to pay its franchise and income taxes and expenses relating to the administration of the trust account, Trust Account, the proceeds

from the IPO and the Private Placement held in the trust account Trust Account will not be released until the earliest of (i) the consummation of the Initial

Business Combination or (ii) the distribution of the Trust Account proceeds as described below. The remaining proceeds outside the Trust Account may be

used to pay for business, legal and accounting due diligence on prospective acquisitions and continuing general and administrative expenses.

The Company’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, other than the withdrawal of interest to pay taxes, if any, none of the funds held

in the Trust Account will be released until the earlier of: (i) the completion of the Initial Business Combination; (ii) the redemption of any Class A common stock

shares, $0.0001 par value, included in the Units (the “Public Shares”) sold in the Initial Public Offering that have been properly tendered in connection with a

stockholder vote to amend the Company’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation to modify the substance or timing of its obligation to redeem 100%

of such Public Shares if it does not complete the Initial Business Combination within up to 27 33 month period (the “Combination Period”) from the closing of

the Initial Public Offering; and (iii) the redemption of 100% of the Class A common stock shares included in the Units sold in the Initial Public Offering if the

Company is unable to complete an Initial Business Combination within the Combination Period from the closing of the Initial Public Offering (subject to the

requirements of law). The proceeds deposited in the Trust Account could become subject to the claims of the Company’s creditors, if any, which could have

priority over the claims of the Company’s public stockholders. See the below sections titled “Extensions of the Period to Complete the Initial Business

Combination” Combination,” “2023 Special Meeting of Stockholders” and “2024 Special Meeting of Stockholders” and “Amendment for additional information

related to Articles ofthe Combination Period.
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Incorporation and Additional Extension of Period to Complete the Initial Business Combination” for additional information related to the Combination Period.

The Company’s management has broad discretion with respect to the specific application of the net proceeds of the Initial Public Offering, although

substantially all of the net proceeds of the Initial Public Offering are intended to be generally applied toward consummating an Initial Business Combination.

The Initial Business Combination must occur with one or more target businesses that together have an aggregate fair market value of at least 80% of the

assets held in the Trust Account (excluding the deferred underwriting commissions and taxes payable on income earned on the Trust Account, as applicable)

at the time of the agreement to enter into the Initial Business Combination. Furthermore, there is no assurance that the Company will be able to successfully

effect an Initial Business Combination.

The Company, after signing a definitive agreement for an Initial Business Combination, will either (i) seek stockholder approval of the Initial Business

Combination at a meeting called for such purpose in connection with which stockholders may seek to redeem their shares, regardless of whether they vote for

or against the Initial Business Combination, for cash equal to their pro rata share of the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account as of two

business days prior to the consummation of the Initial Business Combination, including interest but less income and franchise taxes payable, or (ii) provide

stockholders with the opportunity to sell their Public Shares to the Company by means of a tender offer (and thereby avoid the need for a stockholder vote) for

an amount in cash equal to their pro rata share of the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account as of two business days prior to the

consummation of the Initial Business Combination, including interest but less income and franchise taxes payable. The decision as to whether the Company

will seek stockholder approval of the Initial Business Combination or will allow stockholders to sell their Public Shares in a tender offer will be made by the

Company, solely in its discretion, and will be based on a variety of factors such as the timing of the transaction and whether the terms of the transaction would

otherwise require the Company to seek stockholder approval, unless a vote is required by law or under applicable stock exchange rules. If the Company seeks

stockholder approval, it will complete its Initial Business Combination only if a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock voted are voted in favor of
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the Initial Business Combination. However, in no event will the Company redeem its Public Shares in an amount that would cause its net tangible assets to be

less than $5,000,001. In such case, the Company would not proceed with the redemption of its Public Shares and the related Initial Business Combination, and

instead may search for an alternate Initial Business Combination.

If the Company holds a stockholder vote or there is a tender offer for shares in connection with an Initial Business Combination, a public stockholder will have

the right to redeem its shares for an amount in cash equal to its pro rata share of the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account as of two business

days prior to the consummation of the Initial Business Combination, including interest but less income and franchise taxes payable. As a result, such Class A

common stock shares were recorded at redemption amount and classified as temporary equity upon the completion of the Initial Public Offering, in accordance

with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 480, “Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity” (“ASC 480”).

Pursuant to the Company’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation if the Company is unable to complete the Initial Business Combination within 33

months (pursuant to the Combination Period 2023 and 2024 Charter Amendment Proposals discussed below) from the closing of the Initial Public Offering, the

Company will (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of winding up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible but no more than ten business days

thereafter subject to lawfully available funds therefor, redeem the Public Shares, at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on

deposit in the Trust Account including interest earned and not previously released to pay the Company’s franchise and income taxes (less up to $100,000 of

interest to pay dissolution expenses and net of taxes payable), divided by the number of then outstanding Public Shares, which redemption will completely

extinguish public stockholder’s rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidating distributions, if any), subject to applicable law, and (iii) as

promptly as reasonably possible following such redemption, subject to the approval of the Company’s remaining stockholders and the Company’s board of

directors, dissolve and liquidate, subject in each case to the Company’s obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and the requirements

of other applicable law. The Sponsor and the Company’s independent director nominees will not be entitled to rights to liquidating distributions from the Trust

Account with respect to any Founder Shares (as defined below) held by them if the Company fails to complete the Initial Business Combination within the

Combination Period of the closing of the Initial Public Offering. However, if the Sponsor or any of the Company’s directors, officers or affiliates acquires Class A

common stock shares in or after the Initial Public Offering, they will be entitled to liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to such shares if

the Company fails to complete the Initial Business Combination within the prescribed time period.
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In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company after an Initial Business Combination, the Company’s stockholders are entitled to share

ratably in all assets remaining available for distribution to them after payment of liabilities and after provision is made for each class of shares, if any, having

preference over the Class A common stock. The Company’s stockholders have no preemptive or other subscription rights. There are no sinking fund provisions

applicable to the Class A common stock, except that the Company will provide its stockholders with the opportunity to redeem their Public Shares for cash

equal to their pro rata share of the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, upon the completion of the Initial Business Combination, subject to

the limitations described herein.

Extensions of the Period to Complete the Initial Business Combination

On February 28, 2023, the Company extended the period it has to consummate an initial business combination Business Combination by a period of three

months, or until May 28, 2023 (the “Initial Extension”). In connection with the Initial Extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited an aggregate of $1,725,000

into the Company’s Trust Account, representing $0.10 per public share, in exchange for the Company’s issuance of to the Sponsor of 1,150,000 Private

Placement Warrants, at a rate of $1.50 per private placement warrant, with the same terms as the Private Placement Warrants issued in connection with the

closing of the Company’s initial public offering.

On May 26, 2023, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial business combination by a period of three months, or until August

28, 2023 (the “Second Extension”). In connection with the Second Extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited an aggregate of $1,725,000 into the

Company’s Trust Account, representing $0.10 per public share, in exchange for the Company’s issuance of to the Sponsor of 1,150,000 Private Placement

Warrants, at a rate of $1.50 per private placement warrant, with the same terms as the Private Placement Warrants issued in connection with the closing of the

Company’s initial public offering.

The Company’s stockholders were not entitled to vote on or redeem their shares in connection with the Initial Extension or the Second Extension.

In order to finance connection with the Initial Extension and the Second Extension described above, the Sponsor entered into promissory notes in the

aggregate amount of $3,450,000 ($1,725,000 for each extension) at an interest rate of 16% per annum (each, an “Extension Note” and together, the “Extension
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Notes”) with Everest Consolidator – A Series of Master Fund I LLC (the “Noteholder”), a third-party investor.

Conditional Guarantees

In connection with the Initial Extension and the Second Extension described above, the Company also entered into a Conditional Guaranty Agreement in favor

of the Noteholder in respect of each Extension Note. Pursuant to each Conditional Guaranty Agreement, the Company has agreed, subject to the Company’s

consummation of an Initial Business Combination prior to the Termination Date (as defined in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation), to

guarantee the payment by the Sponsor to the Noteholder when due of all principal and accrued interest owed to the Noteholder under the Extension Notes.

The Company’s obligations under each Conditional Guaranty Agreement will terminate upon the earliest to occur of (i) the payment in full or discharge and

termination of the applicable Extension Note, (ii) the failure to consummate an initial business combination prior to the Termination Date or (iii) immediately prior

to the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company.

Amendment to Articles 2023 Special Meeting of Incorporation and Additional Monthly Extensions of Period to Complete the Initial Business

Combination Stockholders

On August 24, 2023, we the Company convened a special meeting of stockholders (the “Special “2023 Special Meeting”) at which our stockholders approved,

among other items, (i) a proposal to amend our the Company’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation to provide our the board of directors with the

right to extend (the “Monthly Extensions”) the date by which we have the Company has to consummate a business combination (the “Combination Period”) up

to an additional six (6) times for one (1) month each time, from August 28, 2023 to February 28, 2024 (as extended, the “Extended Date”) (the “Extension “2023

Extension Amendment Proposal”); (ii) a proposal to approve the adoption of an amendment (the “Trust “2023 Trust Amendment”) to the Trust Agreement to

allow us the Company to extend the Combination Period up to an additional six (6) times for one (1) month each time from August 28, 2023 to February 28,

2024, the Extended Date, by depositing into the Trust Account, for each one-month extension, the lesser of (a) $280,000 and (b) $0.035 per public share then

outstanding (the “Trust Amendment Proposal”); and (iii) a proposal to amend our the amended and restated certificate of incorporation to eliminate the limitation

that the Company shall not redeem public shares to the extent that such redemption would cause our the Company’s net tangible assets to be less than

$5,000,001 (the “Redemption Limitation”) to allow us the Company to redeem public shares irrespective of whether such redemption would exceed the

Redemption Limitation (the “Redemption Limitation Amendment Proposal” and together with Extension Amendment Proposal and the Trust Amendment

Proposal, the “Charter Amendment Proposals”).
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such redemption would exceed the Redemption Limitation (the “2023 Redemption Limitation Amendment Proposal” and together with the 2023 Extension

Amendment Proposal and the Trust Amendment Proposal, the “2023 Charter Amendment Proposals”).

In connection with the 2023 Charter Amendment Proposals, holders of our the Company’s public shares were given the opportunity to redeem their public

shares for a pro rata share of the funds on deposit in the Trust Account as of two business days prior to such approval, including any interest earned on the

trust account Trust Account deposits (net of taxes payable), divided by the number of then outstanding public shares. A total of 63 stockholders elected to

redeem an aggregate of 3,825,869 shares of Class A Common Stock at a per share redemption price of $10.73, totaling $41,057,655. Following the 2023

Special Meeting and associated redemptions, we the Company had approximately $144.9 million remaining in the Trust Account.

On August 28, 2023, the Company extended the period it has to consummate an initial business combination Business Combination by a period of one month,

or until September 28, 2023 (the “First Monthly Extension”). In connection with the one-month extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited $280,000 into the

Company’s Trust Account.

On September 28, 2023, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial business combination Business Combination by a period of

one month, or until October 28, 2023 (the “Second Monthly Extension”). In connection with the one-month extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited

$280,000 into the Company’s Trust Account.

On October 23, 2023, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial business combination Business Combination by a period of one

month, or until November 28, 2023 (the “Third Monthly Extension”). In connection with the one-month extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited $280,000

into the Company’s Trust Account.

On November 28 2023, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial business combination Business Combination by a period of

one month, or until December 28, 2023 (the “Fourth Monthly Extension”). In connection with the one-month extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited
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$280,000 into the Company’s Trust Account.

On December 28, 2023, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial Business Combination by a period of one month, or until

January 28, 2024 (the “Fifth Monthly Extension”). In connection with the one-month extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited $280,000 into the Company’s

Trust Account.

On January 28, 2024, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial Business Combination by a period of one month, or until

February 28, 2024 (the “Sixth Monthly Extension”). In connection with the one-month extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited $280,000 into the

Company’s Trust Account.

2024 Special Meeting of Stockholders

The Company convened a special meeting of stockholders on February 26, 2024 (the “2024 Special Meeting”) at which the Company’s stockholders approved

the amendment to the Company’s Charter to provide the Company’s board of directors with the right to extend (the “Extension”) the Combination Period up to

an additional six (6) times for one (1) month each time, from February 28, 2024 to August 28, 2024 (as extended, the “New Extended Date”) (the “ 2024

Extension Amendment Proposal”). The Company also entered into a second amendment (the “2024 Trust Amendment” and together with 2024 Extension

Amendment Proposal, the “2024 Charter Amendment Proposals”) to the Trust Agreement, The Trust Amendment, as amended, allows the Company to extend

the date by which the Company has to consummate a business combination (the “Combination Period”) up to an additional six (6) times for one (1) month each

time from February 28, 2024 to August 28, 2024 by depositing into the Trust Account, for each one-month extension, the lesser of (a) $150,000 and (b) $0.030

per share (the “Extension Payment”) for each then-outstanding share of the Company’s Class A common stock (the “Public Shares”) after giving effect to the

redemption of the Public Shares for the redemption price.

In connection with the 2024 Charter Amendment Proposals, holders of the Company’s public shares were given the opportunity to redeem their public shares

for a pro rata share of the funds on deposit in the Trust Account, including any interest earned on the Trust Account deposits (net of taxes payable), divided by

the number of then outstanding public shares. Stockholders holding 6,032,023 Public Shares exercised their right to redeem such shares for a pro rata portion

of the funds in the Company’s Trust Account. As a result, approximately $67.2 million (approximately $11.14 per Public Share) were removed from the

Company’s Trust Account to pay such redeeming holders of Public Shares. Following the redemptions, a total of 7,392,108 Public Shares remained

outstanding and eligible for redemption, and the Company had approximately $82.7 million remaining in the Trust Account.
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On February 28, 2024, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial Business Combination by a period of one month, or until

March 28, 2024 (the “First 2024 Monthly Extension”). In connection with the one-month extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited $150,000 into the

Company’s Trust Account.

On March 26, 2024, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial Business Combination by a period of one month, or until April 28,

2024 (the “Second 2024 Monthly Extension”). In connection with the one-month extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited $150,000 into the Company’s

Trust Account.

On April 26, 2024, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial Business Combination by a period of one month, or until May 28,

2024 (the “Third 2024 Monthly Extension”). In connection with the one-month extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited $150,000 into the Company’s Trust

Account.

Business Combination Agreement

On May 19, 2023, the Company entered into a business combination agreement with Unifund Financial Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“New

PubCo” or “Unifund”), Unifund Merger Sub Inc., a Delaware corporation and a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of New PubCo (“Merger Sub”), Unifund Holdings,

LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Holdings”), Credit Card Receivables Fund Incorporated, an Ohio corporation (“CCRF”), USV, LLC, an Ohio limited

liability company (“USV” and together with Holdings and CCRF, the “Target Companies”), and, solely for limited purposes set forth therein, the Sponsor (the

“Business Combination Agreement”). Each of New PubCo and Merger Sub is a newly formed entity that was formed for the sole purpose of entering into and

consummating the Business Combination (as defined below). The Business Combination Agreement has been approved by the boards of directors or board of

managers, as applicable, of each of SPAC, the Target Companies and New PubCo.
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The Target Company group specializes in the acquisition and servicing of consumer debt receivables and offers consumer data analytics and tailored recovery

solutions for major banks, financial institutions and other creditors across the United States.

The terms of the Business Combination Agreement, which contains customary representations and warranties, covenants, closing conditions, and other terms

relating to the transactions contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement, are summarized below in “Structure of Business Combination”.

Waiver and Consent to Business Combination Agreement

On February 25, 2024, the Company, Sponsor and Holdings entered into a Waiver and Consent to Business Combination Agreement (the “Waiver and

Consent”). The Waiver and Consent, among other things, permits the solicitation of, exploration and negotiation of, entry into, and consummation of (a) one or

more potential sales, whether structured as a sale of equity of some or all of the Unifund Entities, a sale of some, all or substantially all of the assets of some or

all of the Unifund Entities or as a merger, consolidation or otherwise, including, without limitation, sales of one or more of the receivables portfolios held by any

of the Unifund Entities, which may or may not be made in the ordinary course of their respective business (a “Sale Transaction”) and (b) one or more financing

transactions whether structured as debt, equity or a combination thereof, to provide for among other things the refinancing of the Unifund Entities’ existing

senior secured credit facility (each, a “Financing Transaction” and together with any Sale Transaction, each, a “Strategic Transaction”). The Waiver and

Consent further waived any past, current, or future defaults under the Business Combination Agreement caused by, arising from, or in connection with, any

Strategic Transaction and further waived any and all defaults or breaches of the Business Combination Agreement by the Unifund Entities that may have

occurred prior to or on the date of signing the Waiver and Consent. The Waiver and Consent resulted in amendments to the termination provisions of the

Business Combination Agreement as discussed below.

Structure of Business Combination

Pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions of the Business Combination Agreement, (i) prior to the Merger and the Contributions and Exchanges (as

each is defined below), David G. Rosenberg (“Rosenberg”) and ZB Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership (“ZB Limited”), shall cause a

reorganization of Holdings, USV and certain other members of the Target Company group to be consummated as specified in the Business Combination

Agreement (the “Reorganization”), (ii) on the Closing Date (as defined below), Merger Sub will be merged with and into SPAC (the “Merger”), with SPAC

continuing as the surviving corporation of the Merger (the “Surviving Corporation”) and a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of New PubCo, and (iii) on the Closing

Date, pursuant to
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the Contribution and Exchange Agreement (as defined below), (a) Rosenberg will contribute 100% of the outstanding common stock of CCRF and 100% of the

outstanding common stock of Unifund Corporation, an Ohio corporation (“Unifund Corp”), beneficially owned by Rosenberg prior to the Contributions and

Exchanges (as defined below), in each case, to New PubCo in exchange for newly issued shares of common stock of New PubCo, par value $0.0001 per

share (“New PubCo Common Stock”), (b) Rosenberg, not individually but solely as trustee of the TER Trust (“TER Trust” and, together with Rosenberg and ZB

Limited, the “Target Company Equityholders”), will contribute 100% of the equity interests in Payce, LLC, an Ohio limited liability company (“Payce”),

beneficially
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owned by TER Trust prior to the Contributions and Exchanges to New PubCo in exchange for newly issued shares of New PubCo Common Stock, (c) ZB

Limited will contribute all of its equity interests in each of Holdings, USV, Distressed Asset Portfolio I, LLC, an Ohio limited liability company (“DAP I”), and

Distressed Asset Portfolio IV, LLC, an Ohio limited liability company (“DAP IV”), in each case, beneficially owned by ZB Limited prior to the Contributions and

Exchanges to New PubCo in exchange for newly issued shares of New PubCo Common Stock and (d) immediately thereafter, New PubCo will contribute the

equity interests in each of Holdings and USV to CCRF, and, as a result of the foregoing, New PubCo will directly own (x) 100% of the outstanding common

stock of CCRF and 100% of the outstanding common stock of Unifund Corp beneficially owned by Rosenberg prior to the Contributions and Exchanges, (y)
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100% of the equity interests of Payce held by TER Trust prior to the Contributions and Exchanges and (z) 100% of the outstanding equity interests in DAP I

and DAP IV beneficially held by ZB Limited prior to the Contributions and Exchanges (constituting 25% of the outstanding equity interests of each of DAP I and

DAP IV), and CCRF will own 100% of the outstanding equity interests of each of Holdings and USV (collectively, the “Contributions and Exchanges” and

together with the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement, the “Business Combination”).

In connection with the Business Combination, certain related agreements have been, or will be entered into on or prior to the closing of the Business

Combination, including the New PubCo Registration Rights and Lock-up Agreement, the Sponsor Support Agreement and the Holder Support Agreement.

Consideration

The consideration to be paid to the Target Company Equityholders, SPAC stockholders and New PubCo in connection with the Business Combination will

include stock consideration and is based on an enterprise value of $238 million of the Target Companies and their respective subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement, at the effective time of the Merger (the “Merger Effective Time”), by virtue of the Merger and without any

action on the part of the Target Companies, New PubCo, SPAC or any SPAC stockholder, (i) each SPAC unit issued and outstanding immediately prior to the

Merger Effective Time will be separated automatically and the holder thereof will be deemed to hold one (1) share of SPAC Class A common stock and one-

half of one (1/2) SPAC warrant, (ii) each share of SPAC common stock held in treasury of SPAC immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time will be

automatically canceled and no New PubCo Common Stock or other consideration will be delivered or deliverable in exchange therefor, (iii) each share of SPAC

common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time (except for shares being cancelled pursuant to the immediately preceding

clause (ii)) shall be converted into the right to receive one share of New PubCo Common Stock, with a value ascribed to each share of New PubCo Common

Stock of $10.00, (iv) each share of Merger Sub common stock that is outstanding immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time shall automatically convert into

one (1) share of common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of SPAC in its capacity as the Surviving Corporation, (v) New PubCo shall issue a number of

shares of New PubCo Common Stock to which such SPAC stockholder is entitled in respect of its shares of SPAC common stock and (vi) each SPAC warrant

outstanding and unexercised immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time, whether or not vested, will cease to represent a right to acquire SPAC common

stock and will convert into a warrant to purchase the same number of shares of New PubCo Common Stock.

At the effective time of the Contributions and Exchanges, by virtue of the Contributions and Exchanges and in accordance with the Contribution and Exchange

Agreement, (i) Rosenberg will be issued 7,500,000 shares of New PubCo Common Stock, (ii) ZB Limited will be issued 2,250,000 shares of New PubCo

Common Stock and (iii) the TER Trust will be issued 250,000 shares of New PubCo Common Stock.

The terms of the Business Combination Agreement provides that New PubCo (or to the extent applicable, Sponsor) will reimburse ZB Limited (the

“Reimbursement Obligations”) for certain tax liabilities incurred by the members of ZB Limited in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Business

Combination Agreement on or before January 31, 2024 and January 31, 2025, as applicable. Pursuant to the terms of the Business Combination Agreement,

New PubCo will use its commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that at least $4,200,000 of cash will remain in one or more bank accounts of New PubCo or

under New PubCo’s control to make such
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payments to ZB Limited. In the event that the board of directors of New PubCo determines in good faith that the payment of the full amount of the

Reimbursement Obligations, as applicable, would adversely affect New PubCo’s ability to: (i) pay its obligations when due, (ii) conduct its business in

accordance with its business plan or (iii) comply with the covenants included in the Target Companies’ senior credit facility and other material contracts and

indebtedness, Sponsor has agreed to transfer such shortfall amount, as applicable, to ZB Limited, in cash or in shares of New PubCo Common Stock (as

determined in Sponsor’s sole discretion), with each such share valued at $10.00 per share.
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SPAC and New PubCo have agreed to take all necessary actions consistent with applicable laws to cause the board of directors of New PubCo as of

immediately following the Closing to consist of five directors, consisting of David G. Rosenberg, W. Brian Maillian, Adam Dooley, one director designated by

SPAC and one director reasonably agreed to by the Target Companies and SPAC, who is (i) independent and (ii) qualified to serve on the Audit Committee of

New PubCo, in each case, as determined under applicable federal securities laws and the rules promulgated thereunder and stock exchange listing standards.

Any subsequent New PubCo Board will be composed in accordance with and subject to the terms and conditions of the proposed organizational documents of

New PubCo.

Conditions to Closing

The Closing is subject to certain customary conditions, including, among other things: (i) approval by SPAC’s stockholders of the Business Combination

Agreement, the Business Combination and certain other actions related thereto; (ii) approval by the Target Company Equityholders of the Business

Combination Agreement, the Business Combination and certain other actions related thereto; (iii) the receipt of all necessary pre-closing authorizations,

consents, clearances, waivers and approvals of certain Governmental Authorities, (iv) the Reorganization shall have been consummated in all material

respects in accordance with the Business Combination Agreement, (v) SPAC having at least $40,000,000 in Available Cash (defined as an amount equal to:

(a) the amount of cash available to be released from the Trust Account as of immediately prior to, or concurrently with, the Closing (net of the SPAC Share

Redemption Amount), plus (b) the sum of all cash and cash equivalents of SPAC on hand held outside of the Trust Account immediately prior to the Closing,

plus (c) the sum of all cash net proceeds received by SPAC, New PubCo and/or the Target Companies from any Pre-Closing Financing prior to, or upon the

Closing; minus (d) the aggregate amount required to repay any outstanding Working Capital Loans; minus (e) the aggregate amount of all Outstanding Target

Company Transaction Expenses; minus (f) the aggregate amount of all Outstanding SPAC Transaction Expenses); and (vi) the New PubCo Common Stock to

be issued in connection with the Business Combination having been approved for listing on the Listing Exchange (as defined in the Business Combination

Agreement) subject only to official notice of issuance thereof.

The Closing will occur no later than three Business Days following the satisfaction or waiver of all of the closing conditions, or at such other time date and place

as SPAC and the Target Companies may mutually agree in writing (such date, the “Closing Date”), provided that the Merger will not occur prior to the

consummation of the Reorganization.

Termination

The Business Combination Agreement may be terminated by SPAC or the Target Companies at any time prior to the consummation of the Business

Combination under certain circumstances, including, among others, (i) by written consent of SPAC and the Target Companies, (ii) by SPAC or the Target

Companies if SPAC has not obtained the required approval of its stockholders, (iii) by SPAC if the Target Companies have not obtained the required approval

of the applicable Target Company Equityholders by a certain specified approval deadline, (iv) by the Target Companies if the termination date of SPAC as set

forth in SPAC’s governing documents shall not have been extended by Sponsor in accordance with such governing documents prior to May 28, 2023, August

28, 2023, or any other applicable extension prior to December 31, 2023 (the “Agreement End Date”), and (v) prior to the receipt by SPAC of the requisite

approval of its stockholders, by the Target Companies at any time in their sole and absolute discretion.

If As acknowledged by the Waiver and Consent, the Target Companies may, upon notice to the SPAC and the Sponsor, terminate the Business Combination

Agreement at any time in their sole and absolute discretion if the Transactions contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement have not been

consummated by December 31, 2023.

In connection with the Waiver and Consent dated as of February 25, 2024, each of the SPAC and the Sponsor acknowledged and agreed that the Agreement

End Date was December 31, 2023, and, accordingly, the Target Companies may terminate the Business Combination
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Agreement at any time without payment of any fee or penalty, including, without limitation, payment of the Target Company Termination Fee, nor will such

termination limit the SPAC and Sponsor’s obligations to the Target Companies, including for the payment of fees and expenses of the Target Companies, and

nothing herein or otherwise is or shall be construed as a waiver of the Target Companies’ right to terminate on such basis.

Under the original terms of the agreement, if the Business Combination Agreement is validly terminated, none of the parties thereto will have any liability or any

further obligation under the Business Combination Agreement, other than for actual fraud or any willful or material breach of the Business Combination

Agreement occurring prior to the termination and other than certain exception and except for certain other exceptions contemplated by the Business

Combination Agreement (including the terms of the Confidentiality Agreement (as defined in the Business Combination Agreement)) that will survive
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termination of the Business Combination Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Business Combination Agreement is was to be terminated by the

Target Companies pursuant to the applicable terms set forth in the Business Combination Agreement and any member of the Target Company group

consummates was to consummate an acquisition transaction within twelve months of such termination, then the Target Companies must pay would have paid

Sponsor an amount equal to the greater of (i) $4,000,000 and (ii) four percent of the aggregate fair market value of the consideration paid to the Target

Company Equityholders upon the consummation of the acquisition transaction giving rise to such termination fee; provided that such fee will be would have

been capped at the lower of $12,000,000 and all actual documented and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by SPAC in connection with the transactions

contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement.

13

Table  The Waiver and Consent dated as of ContentsFebruary 25, 2024 allowed the solicitation of, exploration and negotiation of, entry into, and consummation

of (a) one or more potential sales, whether structured as a sale of equity of some or all of the Unifund Entities, a sale of some, all or substantially all of the

assets of some or all of the Unifund Entities or as a merger, consolidation or otherwise, including, without limitation, sales of one or more of the receivables

portfolios held by any of the Unifund Entities, which may or may not be made in the ordinary course of their respective business (a “Sale Transaction”) and (b)

one or more financing transactions whether structured as debt, equity or a combination thereof, to provide for among other things the refinancing of the Unifund

Entities’ existing senior secured credit facility (each, a “Financing Transaction” and together with any Sale Transaction, each, a “Strategic Transaction”). The

Waiver and Consent further waived any past, current, or future defaults under the Business Combination Agreement caused by, arising from, or in connection

with, any Strategic Transaction and further waived any and all defaults or breaches of the Business Combination Agreement by the Unifund Entities that may

have occurred prior to or on the date of signing the Waiver and Consent.

Registration Statement / Proxy Statement

After the execution and delivery of the Business Combination Agreement, SPAC, New PubCo and the Target Companies have jointly prepared and New PubCo

has filed a registration statement on Form S-4, including a preliminary Proxy Statement, with the SEC (such registration statement, as amended or

supplemented, the “Registration Statement”) in connection with the registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, of the securities to be issued in

connection with the Business Combination. As promptly as practicable after the effectiveness of the Registration Statement, SPAC will prepare and file with the

SEC a proxy statement (the “Proxy Statement” and together with the Registration Statement, the “Registration Statement / Proxy Statement”) to be sent to

SPAC stockholders in advance of the Special Meeting for the purposes of (i) providing SPAC stockholders with a notice of the opportunity to redeem their

shares of SPAC Class A common stock, and (ii) soliciting proxies from holders of SPAC Class A common stock to vote at the Special Meeting to (a) approve

and adopt the Business Combination Agreement and the Business Combination; (b) approve and adopt the Merger, pursuant to which Merger Sub will be

merged with and into SPAC, with SPAC continuing as the surviving corporation of the Merger and a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of New PubCo; (c) adopt

and approve each other proposal either the SEC or Listing Exchange (or the respective staff members thereof) indicates is necessary in its comments to the

Registration Statement, along with other proposals deemed necessary or appropriate for the Business Combination and (d) adjourn the special meeting to a

later date or dates, if necessary, to permit further solicitation and vote of proxies if, based upon the tabulated vote at the time of the special meeting, there are

not sufficient votes to approve one or more proposals presented to stockholders for vote. The Registration Statement / Proxy Statement will also include a

proxy statement to be sent to SPAC public warrant holders in advance of a special meeting of the SPAC public warrant holders for the purposes of soliciting

proxies from holders of SPAC public warrants to vote at such meeting to (a) approve and adopt an amendment to the terms of SPAC’s public warrants so that

each public warrant will be convertible into the right to receive a cash payment of $0.50 upon the Closing (the “Warrant Amendment Proposal”) and (b) adjourn

the special meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary, to permit further solicitation and vote of proxies if, based upon the tabulated vote at the time of the

special meeting, there are not sufficient votes to approve the Warrant Amendment Proposal. The Warrant Amendment Proposal will only become effective if the

Business Combination is completed.
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SPAC will use its reasonable best efforts to ensure SPAC remains listed as a public company on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) or The Nasdaq

Global Market (“Nasdaq”). As promptly as reasonably practicable after the date of the Business Combination Agreement and prior to the Closing Date, New

PubCo will apply for the New PubCo Common Stock and New PubCo Public Warrants to be approved for, listing on the NYSE or Nasdaq, as applicable.

New PubCo Registration Rights and Lock-up Agreement

At the Closing, New PubCo will enter into the New PubCo Registration Rights and Lock-up Agreement with the Target Companies, Sponsor and the Target

Company Equityholders (the “New PubCo Registration Rights and Lock-up Agreement”). Pursuant to the terms of the New PubCo Registration Rights and

Lock-up Agreement, the Target Companies, Sponsor and the Target Company Equityholders will be entitled to certain piggyback registration rights and

customary demand registration rights.

The New PubCo Registration Rights and Lock-up Agreement provides that New PubCo will agree that within 30 calendar days after the Closing, New PubCo

will use commercially reasonable efforts to file with the SEC a shelf registration statement. New PubCo will use its commercially reasonable efforts to have

such shelf registration statement declared effective as soon as practicable after the filing thereof, but no later than the earlier of (i) sixty calendar days after the

filing thereof (or ninety calendar days after the filing thereof if the SEC notifies New PubCo that it will “review” the registration statement) and (ii) five business

days after the date New PubCo is notified (orally or in writing, whichever is earlier) by the SEC that the registration statement will not be “reviewed” or will not

be subject to further review; and New PubCo will not be subject to any form of monetary penalty for its failure to do so.

The New PubCo Registration Rights and Lock-up Agreement also provides for certain lockup restrictions on certain lock-up shares. Pursuant to the New

PubCo Registration Rights and Lock-up Agreement, the Company Equityholders (together with their respective successors and any permitted transferees) and

Sponsor (together with its respective successors and any permitted transferees) agreed to be subject to a 365 day lock-up from the Closing Date. Such lock-up

restrictions are subject to certain customary exceptions, and an early-release provision if the closing price of the New PubCo Common Stock equals or

exceeds $12.00 per share for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period commencing at least 150 days after the Closing Date.
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Notwithstanding the lock-up provided for in the New PubCo Registration Rights and Lock-up Agreement, ZB Limited may sell an amount of its shares of New

PubCo Common Stock during the period starting on the first business day of the second month of the calendar year immediately following the Closing and

ending on April 15th of the calendar year immediately following the Closing (or, if such date is not a business day, the first business day following such date)

(such date, the “Limited Early Release End Date”) in an aggregate amount equal to $3,000,000 less any amount paid in cash by New PubCo or Sponsor

pursuant to the terms of the Reimbursement Obligations. Any shares of New PubCo Common Stock that are not sold on or prior to the Limited Early Release

End Date will, as of the day following the Limited Early Release End Date, be subject to the lock-up restrictions set forth in the New PubCo Registration Rights

and Lock-up Agreement.

Contribution and Exchange Agreement

Concurrently with the execution of the Business Combination Agreement, New PubCo and the Target Company Equityholders entered into the Contribution and

Exchange Agreement (the “Contribution and Exchange Agreement”), pursuant to which, among other things, (i) Rosenberg will contribute 100% of the

outstanding common stock of CCRF and 100% of the outstanding common stock of Unifund Corp beneficially owned by Rosenberg prior to the Contributions

and Exchanges in exchange for the issuance of New PubCo Common Stock to Rosenberg, (ii) Rosenberg, not individually but solely as trustee of TER Trust,

will contribute 100% of the interests in Payce beneficially owned by TER Trust to New PubCo in exchange for the issuance of New PubCo Common Stock to

TER Trust, (iii) ZB Limited will contribute all of its equity interests in each of Holdings, USV, DAP I and DAP IV to New PubCo in exchange for the issuance of

New PubCo Common Stock to ZB Limited and (iv) immediately thereafter, New PubCo will contribute the equity interests in each of Holdings and USV to

CCRF, and, as a result of the foregoing Contributions and Exchanges, New PubCo will directly own (a) 100% of the outstanding equity interests of CCRF and

100% of the outstanding equity interests in Unifund Corp beneficially owned by Rosenberg prior to the Contributions and Exchanges, (b) 100% of the

outstanding equity interests in Payce beneficially owned by TER Trust prior to the Contributions and Exchanges and (c) 100% of the outstanding equity

interests in DAP I and DAP IV beneficially held by ZB Partnership prior to the Contributions and Exchanges (constituting 25% of the outstanding Equity

Interests of each of DAP I and DAP IV), and CCRF will own 100% of the outstanding equity interests in each of Holdings and USV.
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Sponsor Support Agreement

Concurrently with the execution of the Business Combination Agreement, Sponsor entered into the Sponsor Support Agreement, pursuant to which Sponsor

agreed to, among other things, (i) support and vote all of its SPAC common stock to adopt and approve the Business Combination Agreement and the other

documents contemplated by the Sponsor Support Agreement and the Transactions, (ii) comply with certain transfer restrictions applicable to its SPAC common

stock, (iii) subject to and conditioned upon the occurrence of Closing, waive any adjustment to the conversion ratio set forth in the existing organizational

documents or any other anti-dilution or similar protection with respect to Class B common stock (and any other equity securities of SPAC or New PubCo for

which Class B common stock are exchanged or converted), (iv) forfeit a 1,500,000 shares of SPAC Class B common stock held by Sponsor immediately prior

to the Closing and (v) subject a specified number of shares of New PubCo Common Stock issuable upon exchange of shares of SPAC Class B common stock

to a performance-based vesting schedule.

The Sponsor Support Agreement will automatically terminate, without any notice or action on the part of a party, upon the valid termination of the Business

Combination Agreement.

Target Company Equityholder Support Agreement

Concurrently with the execution of the Business Combination Agreement, the Target Company Equityholders entered into a Company Holder Support

Agreement (the “Company Holder Support Agreement”), pursuant to which the Target Company Equityholders have agreed to, among other things, (i) support

and vote (whether pursuant to a dully convened meeting of the Target Company Equityholders or pursuant to an action by written consent of the Target

Company Equityholders) in favor of the adoption and approval of the Business Combination Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including

the Contributions and Exchanges, (ii) consummate, or cause the Target Companies to consummate, the Reorganization, (iii) be bound by certain transfer

restrictions with respect to New PubCo Common Stock and (iv) take any actions necessary to effect the transactions, including the Reorganization and the

Contributions and Exchanges.

The Company Holder Support Agreement will automatically terminate, without any notice or action on the part of a party, upon the valid termination of the

Business Combination Agreement.
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Risks and Uncertainties

Results of operations and the Company’s ability to complete an Initial Business Combination with Unifund or another target company may be adversely

affected by various factors that could cause economic uncertainty and volatility in the financial markets, many of which are beyond its control. The business

could be impacted by various social and political circumstances in the U.S. and around the world (including wars and other forms of conflict, including rising

trade tensions between the United States and China, and other uncertainties regarding actual and potential shifts in the U.S. and foreign, trade, economic and

other policies with other countries, terrorist acts, security operations and catastrophic events such as fires, floods, earthquakes, tornadoes, hurricanes and

global health epidemics), may also contribute to increased market volatility and economic uncertainties or deterioration in the U.S. and worldwide. Specifically,

the conflict between Russia and Ukraine and the Israel-Hamas war, and resulting market volatility could adversely affect the Company’s ability to complete a

business combination. In response to the conflict between Russia and Ukraine and Israel and Hamas, the U.S. and other countries have imposed sanctions or

other restrictive actions which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s ability to complete a Business Combination and the value of the

Company’s securities. The Company cannot at this time fully predict the likelihood of one or more of the above events, their duration or magnitude or the extent

to which they may negatively impact our business and our ability to complete an Initial Business Combination. The unaudited condensed financial statements

do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. these uncertainties.

Inflation Reduction Act of 2022

On August 16, 2022, the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 (the “IR Act”) was signed into federal law. The IR Act provides for, among other measures, a new 1%

U.S. federal excise tax on certain repurchases (including redemptions) of stock by publicly traded domestic and certain domestic subsidiaries of publicly traded

foreign corporations. The excise tax is imposed on the repurchasing corporation itself, not its stockholders from whom the shares are repurchased. The amount

of the excise tax is generally 1% of the fair market value of the shares repurchased at the time of repurchase. For purposes of calculating the excise tax,
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however, repurchasing corporations are permitted to net the fair market value of certain new stock issuances against the fair market value of stock repurchases

during the same
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taxable year. In addition, certain exceptions apply to the excise tax. The U.S. Department of the Treasury (the “Treasury”) has been given authority to provide

regulations and other guidance to carry out and prevent the abuse or avoidance of the excise tax.

On December 27, 2022, the U.S. Department of the Treasury issued Notice 2023-2 (the “Notice”) as interim guidance until publication of forthcoming proposed

regulations on the excise tax. Although the guidance in the Notice does not constitute proposed or final Treasury regulations, taxpayers may generally rely

upon the guidance provided in the Notice until the issuance of the forthcoming proposed regulations. Certain of the forthcoming proposed regulations (if issued)

could, however, apply retroactively. The Notice generally provides that if a covered corporation completely liquidates and dissolves, distributions in such

complete liquidation and other distributions by such covered corporation in the same taxable year in which the final distribution in complete liquidation and

dissolution is made are not subject to the excise tax.

Because any redemptions of our the Company’s stock in connection with a business combination, extension vote or otherwise will occur after December 31,

2022 such redemptions, including the redemptions that took place on August 24, 2023 and February 26, 2024 in connection with the 2023 Special Meeting and

2024 Special Meeting, respectively, may be subject to the excise tax. Whether and to what extent we would be subject to the excise tax in connection with any

such redemptions would depend on a number of factors, including (i) the fair market value of the such redemptions, together with any other redemptions or

repurchases we consummate the Company consummates in the same taxable year, (ii) the structure of any business combination and the taxable year in which

it occurs (including redemptions in connection with the Special Meeting) Meetings), (iii) the nature and amount of any equity issuances, in connection with a

business combination or otherwise, issued within the same taxable year, (iv) whether we completely liquidate and dissolve within the taxable year of such

redemptions, and (v) legal uncertainties regarding how the excise tax applies to transactions like the Business Combination (and, if applicable, a complete

liquidation and dissolution of the Company) and the content of final and proposed regulations and further guidance from the Treasury. The foregoing could

cause a reduction in the cash available on hand to complete a Business Combination and in our ability to complete a Business Combination. The proceeds

placed in the trust account Trust Account and the interest earned thereon will not be used to pay for the excise tax that may be levied on the Company in

connection with such redemptions. The Company further confirms that it will not utilize any funds from the trust account Trust Account to pay any such excise

tax.

On August 24, 2023, the Company’s stockholders redeemed 3,825,869 Series Class A  common stock shares for a total of $41,057,655. On February 26,

2024, the Company’s stockholders redeemed an additional 6,032,023 Class A common stock shares for a total of $67,173,998. The Company evaluated the

classification and accounting of the stock redemption redemptions under ASC 450, “Contingencies”. ASC 450 states that when a loss contingency exists the

likelihood that the future events will confirm the loss or impairment of an asset or the incurrence of a liability can range from probable to remote. A contingent

liability must be reviewed at each reporting period to determine appropriate treatment. The
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Company evaluated the current status and probability of completing a Business Combination as of September 30, 2023 the excise taxes becoming payable and

determined that a contingent liability should be calculated and recorded. As of September 30, 2023 During the three months ended March 31, 2024, the

Company recorded $410,576 accrued $671,740 of excise tax liability calculated related to the February 26, 2024 redemptions. The excise tax liability totaled

$1,082,317 and $410,577 as 1% of shares redeemed. March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

Liquidity and Going Concern

As of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024, the Company held $322,367 $26,973 outside of the Trust Account (reserved for tax payments) and had a working

capital deficit of $14,273,909, which excludes current liabilities associated with franchise and income taxes, $23,339,527, which is not sufficient to allow the
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Company to operate for at least the next 12 months from the issuance of these unaudited condensed financial statements, assuming that the proposed

Business Combination with Unifund or another target company is not consummated during that time. Giving effect to the Monthly Extensions pursuant to

the 2024 Charter Amendment Proposals discussed above, the Company has until December 28, 2023 August 28, 2024 to complete an initial business

combination. Business Combination, subject to the Company making the required Trust Account deposits. If an initial business combination Business

Combination is not consummated by December 28, 2023 August 28, 2024, absent any further extension, there will be a mandatory liquidation and subsequent

dissolution of the Company. The Company may need to raise additional capital through loans or additional investments from its Sponsor, stockholders, officers,

directors, or third parties. The Company’s officers, directors and Sponsor may, but are not obligated to, loan the Company funds, from time to time or at any

time, in whatever amount they deem reasonable in their sole discretion, to meet the Company’s working capital needs. needs and provide for the required

monthly extension Trust Account deposits. Accordingly, the Company may not be able to obtain additional financing. If the Company is unable to raise

additional capital, it may be required to take additional measures to conserve liquidity, which could include, but not necessarily be limited to, curtailing

operations, suspending the pursuit of a potential transaction, and reducing overhead expenses. The Company cannot provide any assurance that new

financing will be available to it on commercially acceptable terms, if at all.
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The Company believes that the proceeds raised in the initial public offering, and the funds potentially available from loans from the sponsor or any of their

affiliates will be sufficient to allow the Company to meet the expenditures required for operating its business. However, if the estimate of the costs to complete

the Business Combination is less than the actual amount necessary to do so, the Company may have insufficient funds available to operate its business prior

to the initial Business Combination. Moreover, the Company may need to obtain additional financing either to complete the Business Combination or because

the Company becomes obligated to redeem a significant number of public shares upon completion of the Business Combination, in which case the Company

may issue additional securities or incur debt in connection with such Business Combination.

Management has determined that the liquidity condition, potential mandatory liquidation and subsequent dissolution raises substantial doubt about the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. These unaudited condensed financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recovery of

the recorded assets or the classification of the liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

Franchise and Income Tax Withdrawal Withdrawals

In August 2023, the Company withdrew $1,075,252 of interest and dividend income earned in the Trust Account for payment of the Company’s franchise and

income tax liabilities. As The withdrawn funds were restricted for payment of September 30, 2023, none such tax liabilities under the Company’s certificate

incorporation and the terms of the $1,075,252 had been remitted to satisfy franchise and income tax liabilities. Trust Agreement. Through September 30, 2023,

the Company mistakenly used $752,885 of these funds for the payment of general operating expenses. As of September 30, 2023, these funds (totaling

$752,885) remain payable for franchise and income tax purposes. In consultation with counsel, management determined that this use of funds was not in

accordance with the Trust Agreement and in order to remedy it, management will use funds Agreement. The Company disbursed an aggregate of $322,267,

the balance of the funds withdrawn from the Trust Account, for payment of general operating expenses between October 1, 2023 and November 6, 2023, also

counter to the terms of the Trust Agreement. As of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, none of the $1,075,252 had been remitted to satisfy

franchise and income tax liabilities and such liabilities remain outstanding. The Company intends to raise additional funds prior to the closing of the Business

Combination to satisfy income and franchise tax liabilities. In the event that a Business Combination does not associated with close, any loan made to the

trust Company for the purpose of paying overdue tax obligations that should have been paid using the Withdrawn Trust Funds would be repaid only out of funds

held outside the Trust Account. On May 8, 2024, the Sponsor executed a written commitment (the “Commitment Letter”) to pay any amount that the Company

is unable to pay that is owed to the Internal Revenue Service for federal income tax liabilities. Those or to the Division of Corporations of the State of Delaware

for franchise tax, liabilities remain accrued including upon and following a liquidation of the Trust Account, as a result of September 30, 2023. the use

Withdrawn Trust Funds for general corporate purposes. The Company believes that the Sponsor’s obligations under the Commitment Letter accomplish the

same outcome as restoring funds to the Trust Account in the event that the Trust Account is liquidated because the amounts withdrawn from the Trust Account

in the third quarter of 2023 were intended for the payment of tax obligations.

Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

During the nine-month three-month period ended September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024, there were no changes to the significant accounting policies in relation

to what was described in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 (the “2022 “2023 Form

10-K”) other than what is described under “Guarantee” below. .
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Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the same basis as the annual audited financial

statements and, in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments, which include only normal recurring
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adjustments, necessary for the fair presentation of the Company’s condensed financial position as of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 and its results of

operations for the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, and changes in stockholders’ deficit and

cash flows for the periods presented. The results disclosed in the unaudited condensed statement of operations for the three-months and nine-months ended

September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2023. These

unaudited condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended December

31, 2022 December 31, 2023 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Emerging Growth Company

The Company is an “emerging growth company,” as defined in Section 2(a) of the Securities Act, as modified by the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of

2012 (the “JOBS Act”), and it may take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that

are not emerging growth companies including, but not limited to, not being required
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to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive

compensation in its periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a  non-binding  advisory vote on executive

compensation and stockholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved.

Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act exempts emerging growth companies from being required to comply with new or revised financial accounting standards until

private companies (that is, those that have not had a Securities Act registration statement declared effective or do not have a class of securities registered

under the Exchange Act) are required to comply with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that an emerging growth

company can elect to opt out of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non-emerging growth companies but any such

election to opt out is irrevocable. The Company has elected not to opt out of such extended transition period which means that when a standard is issued or

revised and it has different application dates for public or private companies, the Company, as an emerging growth company, can adopt the new or revised

standard at the time private companies adopt the new or revised standard. This may make comparison of the Company’s unaudited condensed financial

statements with another public company which is neither an emerging growth company nor an emerging growth company which has opted out of using the

extended transition period difficult or impossible because of the potential differences in accounting standards used.

Marketable securities held in the Trust Account

As of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, the Company’s portfolio of investments held in the Trust Account are

comprised solely of securities held in a mutual fund that invests in U.S. Treasury securities with a maturity of 180 days or less. These securities are presented

on the Condensed Balance Sheets unaudited condensed balance sheets at their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Earnings on these securities are

included in investment income in the accompanying Condensed Statements unaudited condensed statements of Operations operations and are automatically

reinvested. The fair value for these securities is determined using quoted market prices in active markets.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, March 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company withdrew $1,075,252 and $1,697,001, respectively,

of did not withdraw any dividend and interest income from the Trust Account for payment of franchise and income tax obligations (see Note 4). As of the date of
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this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, $1,075,252 of the funds withdrawn during the year ended December 31, 2023 have not been remitted to satisfy franchise

and income tax liabilities and such liabilities remain outstanding.

Class A Common Stock Subject to Possible Redemption

The Company accounts for its common stock subject to possible redemption in accordance with the guidance in ASC 480. Shares of common Topic 480

“Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity”. Common stock subject to mandatory redemption, if any, are is classified as a liability instrument and is measured at fair

value. Conditionally redeemable common stock (including common stock that features redemption rights that is either within the control of the holder or subject

to redemption upon the occurrence of uncertain events not solely within the Company’s control) is classified as temporary equity. At all other times, common

stock is classified as stockholders’ equity. The Company’s common stock features certain redemption rights that are considered to be outside of the Company’s

control and subject to occurrence of uncertain future events. Accordingly, as of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2022 December 31,

2023, common stock subject to possible redemption is presented at redemption value as temporary equity, outside of the stockholders’ equity section of the

Company’s unaudited condensed balance sheet.

The Class A common stock subject to possible redemption reflected on the unaudited condensed balance sheet as of March 31, 2024 is reconciled in the

following table:

Gross proceeds      $ 172,500,000

Less:   

Class A common stock issuance costs   (10,100,667)

Fair value of Public Warrants at issuance   (4,672,162)

Redemptions of Class A common stock (108,231,653)

Plus:  

Re-measurement of carrying value to redemption value   18,222,829

Accretion of trust earnings   14,616,106

Class A common stock subject to possible redemption $ 82,334,453
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The Class A common stock subject to possible redemption reflected on the unaudited condensed balance sheet as of September 30, 2023 are December 31,

2023 is reconciled in the following table:

Gross proceeds      $ 172,500,000     $172,500,000

Less:     

Class A common stock issuance costs   (10,100,667)  (10,100,667)

Fair value of Public Warrants at issuance   (4,672,162)  (4,672,162)

Redemptions of Class A common stock (41,057,655) (41,057,655)

Plus:    

Re-measurement of carrying value to redemption value   18,222,829   18,222,829

Accretion of trust earnings   10,581,823 12,919,599

Class A common stock subject to possible redemption $ 145,474,168 $147,811,944

The Class A common stock Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to possible redemption reflected concentration of credit risk consist cash accounts in financial

institutions which, at times may exceed the Federal depository insurance coverage of $250,000. As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company

has not experienced losses on its cash accounts and management believes the condensed balance sheet as of December 31, 2022 are reconciled in the

following table:

Gross proceeds      $ 172,500,000

Less:     
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Class A common stock issuance costs   (10,100,667)

Fair value of Public Warrants at issuance   (4,672,162)

Plus:     

Re-measurement of carrying value to redemption value   18,222,829

Accretion of trust earnings 1,717,994

Class A common stock subject to possible redemption $ 177,667,994

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received for sale of an asset or paid for transfer of a liability, in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date. GAAP establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value.

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest

priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). These tiers include:

● Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets;

● Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable such as quoted prices for
similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and

● Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions, such
as valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable.

In some circumstances, the inputs used to measure fair value might be categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those instances, the fair

value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. As

of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, the Company only held Level 1 financial instruments, which are the

Company’s Marketable securities held in Trust Account.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and

expenses during the reporting period.

Making estimates requires management to exercise significant judgment. It is at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect of a condition, situation

or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the financial statements, which management considered in formulating its estimate, could change in the near

term due to one or more future confirming events. Accordingly, the actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.

Warrant Instruments

The Company accounts for its Public and Private warrants as equity-classified instruments based on an assessment of the warrant’s specific terms and

applicable authoritative guidance in ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (“ASC 480”) and ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (“ASC 815”). The

assessment
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considers whether the warrants are freestanding financial instruments pursuant to ASC 480, meet the definition of a liability pursuant to ASC 480, and whether

the warrants meet all of the requirements for equity classification under ASC 815, including whether the warrants are indexed to the Company’s own common

stock, among other conditions for equity classification. This assessment, which requires the use of professional judgment, is conducted at the time of warrant

issuance and as of each subsequent quarterly period end date while the warrants are outstanding. In that respect, the Private Warrants, as well as any

warrants underlying additional units the Company issues to the Sponsor, officers, directors, initial stockholders, or their affiliates in payment of Working Capital

Loans made to the Company, are identical to the warrants underlying the Units being offered in the IPO.

The Public Warrants (see Note 6) and Private Placement Warrants (see Note 4) were accounted for as equity instruments as they meet all of the requirements

for equity classification under ASC 815.

Business Combination Costs

Costs incurred in relation to a potential Business Combination may include legal, accounting, and other expenses. Any such costs are expensed as incurred.

The Company incurred approximately $2.4 $1.6 million and $8.4 million $0 of Business Combination costs (including all costs incurred by Unifund in connection

with the Business Combination Agreement in accordance with its terms), for the three- three-months ended March 31, 2024 and nine-months ended September

30, 2023, 2023, respectively.

Net (Loss) Income Loss Per Common Stock

The Company complies with accounting and disclosure requirements of FASB ASC Topic 260, “Earnings Per Share.” Net (loss) income loss per share of

common stock is computed by dividing net (loss) income loss by the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the period. The Company’s

Condensed Statements unaudited condensed statements of Operations operations include a presentation of (loss) income loss per ordinary share subject to

redemption in a manner similar to the two-class method of (loss) income loss per share. Accretion associated with the redeemable Class A common stock is

excluded from earnings per share as the redemption value approximates fair value.
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The Company’s Public Warrants (see Note 6) and Private Placement Warrants (see Note 6) 4) could, potentially, be exercised or converted into common

shares and then share in the earnings of the Company. However, these warrants were excluded when calculating diluted (loss) income loss per share because

such inclusion would be anti-dilutive for the periods presented. As a result, diluted (loss) income loss per share is the same as basic (loss) income loss per

share for the periods presented. A reconciliation of net (loss) income loss per ordinary share is as follows:

For the three months ended

     September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024

Redeemable Class A Common Stock

Numerator: Net loss allocable to Redeemable Class A Common Stock $ (1,250,741) (863,643)

Denominator: Weighted Average Shares Outstanding, Redeemable Class A Common Stock 15,669,750 11,104,122

Basic and diluted net loss per share, Redeemable Class A Common Stock $ (0.08)

Non-Redeemable Class B Common Stock

Numerator: Net loss allocable to non-redeemable Class B Common Stock $ (344,219) (335,412)

Denominator: Weighted Average Shares Outstanding Non-Redeemable Class B Common Stock 4,312,500

Basic and diluted net loss per share, Non-Redeemable Class B Common Stock $ (0.08)

     For the nine three months ended

September 30, March 31, 2023

Redeemable Class A Common Stock

Numerator: Net loss allocable to Redeemable Class A Common Stock $ (7,325,712) (686,006)

Denominator: Weighted Average Shares Outstanding, Redeemable Class A Common Stock   16,717,461 17,250,000

Basic and diluted net loss per share, Redeemable Class A Common Stock $ (0.44) (0.04)

Non-Redeemable Class B Common Stock  

Numerator: Net loss allocable to non-redeemable Class B Common Stock $ (1,889,768) (171,501)
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Denominator: Weighted Average Shares Outstanding Non-Redeemable Class B Common Stock   4,312,500

Basic and diluted net loss per share, Non-Redeemable Class B Common Stock $ (0.44) (0.04)
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     For the three months ended

September 30, 2022

Redeemable Class A Common Stock     

Numerator: Net income allocable to Redeemable Class A Common Stock $ 178,112

Denominator: Weighted Average Shares Outstanding, Redeemable Class A Common Stock   17,250,000

Basic and diluted net income per share, Redeemable Class A Common Stock $ 0.01

Non-Redeemable Class B Common Stock     

Numerator: Net income allocable to non-redeemable Class B Common Stock $ 44,528

Denominator: Weighted Average Shares Outstanding Non-Redeemable Class B Common Stock   4,312,500

Basic and diluted net income per share, Non-Redeemable Class B Common Stock $ 0.01

For the nine months ended

September 30, 2022

Redeemable Class A Common Stock

Numerator: Net loss allocable to Redeemable Class A Common Stock $ (447,362)

Denominator: Weighted Average Shares Outstanding, Redeemable Class A Common Stock 17,250,000

Basic and diluted net loss per share, Redeemable Class A Common Stock $ (0.03)

Non-Redeemable Class B Common Stock

Numerator: Net loss allocable to non-redeemable Class B Common Stock $ (111,841)

Denominator: Weighted Average Shares Outstanding Non-Redeemable Class B Common Stock 4,312,500

Basic and diluted net loss per share, Non-Redeemable Class B Common Stock $ (0.03)

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded in accordance with ASC 740, Income Taxes (“ASC 740”), which provides for deferred taxes using an asset and liability approach.

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the unaudited

condensed financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the unaudited condensed

financial statements and tax basis of assets and liabilities and net operating and capital loss carryforwards using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in

which the differences are expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are provided, if based upon the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that

some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The valuation allowance is reduced when it is determined that it is more likely than not that the

deferred tax asset will be realized.

The Company accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the provisions of ASC 740. When uncertain tax positions exist, the Company recognizes

the tax benefit of tax positions to the extent that the benefit would more likely than not be realized assuming examination by the taxing authority. The

determination as to whether the tax benefit will more likely than not be realized is based upon the technical merits of the tax position as well as consideration of

the available facts and circumstances. The Company recognizes any interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits and underpaid income

taxes as income tax expense. The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state and local jurisdictions. The Company is

subject to income tax examinations since inception by various taxing authorities.

There were no unrecognized tax benefits as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company has not

recorded any amounts related to uncertain tax positions.

Guarantee
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The Company accounts for the Conditional Guarantees in accordance with the guidance in ASC 460, Guarantees (“ASC 460”) as the Conditional Guarantees

contingently require the Company to make payments to a guaranteed party. As required by ASC 460, at the inception, the Company assessed the need to

recognize a liability for the contingent component of the guarantee (the obligation to make
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future payments upon the occurrence of certain events) in accordance with the guidance in ASC 450, Contingencies (“ASC 450”). Under ASC 450, a Company

is required to record a liability if it is probable that the Company would have to make a payment under the guarantee, and the payment can be reasonably

estimated. See Note 4 for further detail as it relates to the Conditional Guarantees.

As of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company deemed that the payment of the Extension Notes on behalf of the Sponsor

was probable and recorded a liability of $3,706,339, $3,983,096 and $3,845,474, respectively, including $3,450,000 of principal, and $256,339 $533,096 and

$395,474 of accrued interest related to the Extension Notes through September 30, 2023. March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2020-06, Debt — Debt with Conversion and

Other Options (Subtopic 470-20) and Derivatives and Hedging — Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40) (“ASU 2020-06”) to simplify accounting

for certain financial instruments. ASU 2020-06 eliminates the current models that require separation of beneficial conversion and cash conversion features from

convertible instruments and simplifies the derivative scope exception guidance pertaining to equity classification of contracts in an entity’s own equity. The new

standard also introduces additional disclosures for convertible debt and freestanding instruments that are indexed to and settled in an entity’s own equity. ASU

2020-06 amends the diluted earnings per share guidance, including the requirement to use the if-converted method for all convertible instruments. ASU 2020-

06 is effective January 1, 2024 and should be applied on a full or modified retrospective basis, with early adoption permitted beginning on January 1, 2021.

Management is currently evaluating the new guidance but does The Company adopted ASU 2020-06 on January 1, 2024, which did not expect the adoption of

this guidance to have a material impact on its financial statements.

In December 2023, the Company’s FASB issued ASU 2023-09 “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures,” that addresses requests

for improved income tax disclosures from investors that use the financial statements to make capital allocation decisions. Public entities must adopt the new

guidance for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. The amendments in this ASU must be applied on a retrospective basis to all prior periods

presented in the financial statements and early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact that the adoption of this

standard will have on its financial statements.

Management does not believe that any other recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting standards, if currently adopted, would have a material effect on

our unaudited condensed financial statements.

Note 3—Initial Public Offering

Pursuant to the Initial Public Offering on November 29, 2021, the Company sold 17,250,000 Units at a purchase price of $10.00 per Unit, including 2,250,000

Units sold pursuant to the full exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase additional Units to cover over-allotments. Each Unit consists of one share of

Class A common stock, an aggregate of 17,250,000 shares, and one-half of one redeemable warrant (“Public Warrant”), an aggregate of 8,625,000 public

warrants. Each whole Public Warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of Class A common stock at an exercise price of $11.50 per share.

Note 4—Related Party Transactions
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Class B Founder Shares

In March 2021, the sponsor Sponsor acquired 5,750,000 founder shares (the “Founder Shares”) for an aggregate purchase price of $25,000, consisting of

5,750,000 Class B founder shares (up to an aggregate of 750,000 of which were subject to forfeiture depending on the extent to which the underwriter’s over-

allotment option is exercised). Prior to the initial investment in the company of $25,000 by our sponsor, we had no assets, tangible, or intangible. The per share

purchase price of the founder shares was determined by dividing the amount of cash contributed to the company by the aggregate number of founder shares

issued.

On September 24, 2021, the Company repurchased 1,437,500 shares of Class class B common stock from the Sponsor for $6,250. The underwriters exercised

their overallotment option in full simultaneously in connection with the IPO, resulting in none of IPO. As a result, the Class B Common Stock then outstanding

being subject 562,500 shares are no longer subjected to forfeiture.

The founder shares are designated as Class B common stock and will automatically convert into shares of our Class A common stock (which such shares of

Class A common stock delivered upon conversion will not have redemption rights or be entitled to liquidating distributions from the trust account Trust Account

if we do not consummate an initial business combination) at the time of our initial business combination at a ratio such that the number of shares of Class A

common stock issuable upon conversion of all founder shares will
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equal, in the aggregate, on an  as-converted  basis, 20% of the sum of (i)  the total number of all shares of common stock issued and outstanding upon

completion of this offering, plus (ii) the total number of shares of Class A common stock issued or deemed issued or issuable upon conversion or exercise of

any equity-linked securities or rights issued or deemed issued, by the Company in connection with or in relation to the consummation of the initial business

combination, excluding any shares of Class A common stock or equity-linked securities exercisable for or convertible into shares of Class A common stock

issued, deemed issued, or to be issued, to any seller in the initial business combination and any private placement warrants issued to our sponsor, its affiliates

or any member of our management team upon conversion of working capital loans.

Pursuant to the Sponsor Support Agreement, discussed in Note 1 – Description of Organization and Business Operations, immediately prior to (and contingent

upon) the closing of the Business Combination, the Sponsor has agreed to forfeit an aggregate of 1,500,000 shares of the Company’s Class B Common Stock

for no consideration.
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As of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, there were 4,312,500 shares of Class B common stock were shares

issued and outstanding.

Private Placement Warrants

Simultaneously with the closing of the Initial Public Offering, the Company completed a sale of 6,333,333 warrants (the “Private Placement Warrants”) at a

purchase price of $1.50 per Private Placement Warrant (the “Private Placements”), to the Sponsor and Directors, generating gross proceeds to the Company of

$9,500,000. Each whole Private Placement Warrant is exercisable for one whole share of the Company’s Class A common stock at a price of $11.50 per share.

A portion of the purchase price of the Private Placement Warrants was added to the proceeds from the Initial Public Offering to be held in the Trust Account. If

the Initial Business Combination is not completed within 33 months (pursuant to the Combination Period 2023 and 2024 Charter Amendment Proposals) from

the closing of the Initial Public Offering, the proceeds from the sale of the Private Placement Warrants held in the Trust Account will be used to fund the

redemption of the Public Shares (subject to the requirements of applicable law) and the Private Placement Warrants will expire worthless. The Private

Placement Warrants will be non-redeemable and exercisable on a cashless basis so long as they are held by the initial purchasers of the Private Placement

Warrants or their permitted transferees.
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In connection with the Initial and Second Extension Extensions the Company issued an additional 2,300,000 Private Placement Warrants in aggregate, at a rate

of $1.50 per private placement warrant, with the same terms as the Private Placement Warrants issued in connection with the closing of the

Company's Company’s IPO.

The purchasers of the Private Placement Warrants agreed, subject to limited exceptions, to not transfer, assign or sell any of their Private Placement Warrants

(except to permitted transferees) until 30 days after the completion of the initial Business Combination.

Guarantee Agreements

On February 28, 2023 and May 26, 2023, in connection with the Initial Extension and Second Extension, Extensions, respectively, the Company’s Sponsor

deposited an aggregate of $3,450,000 into the Company’s Trust Account, representing $0.10 per public share, in exchange for the Company’s issuance of to

the Sponsor of 2,300,000 Private Placement Warrants, at a rate of $1.50 per private placement warrant, with the same terms as the Private Placement

Warrants issued in connection with the closing of the Company’s initial public offering.

In connection with the Initial Extension and the Second Extension, the Company also entered into a Conditional Guaranty Agreement in favor of the Noteholder

in respect of each Extension Note. Note described above. Pursuant to each Conditional Guaranty Agreement, the Company has agreed, subject to the

Company’s consummation of an Initial Business Combination prior to the Termination Date, to guarantee the payment by the Sponsor to the Noteholder when

due of all principal and accrued interest owed to the Noteholder under the respective Extension Note. The Company’s obligations under each Conditional

Guaranty Agreement will terminate upon the earliest to occur of (i) the payment in full or discharge and termination of the applicable Extension Note, (ii) the

failure to consummate an initial business combination prior to the Termination Date or (iii) immediately prior to the voluntary or involuntary liquidation,

dissolution or winding up of the Company.

Administrative Support Agreement

The Company has entered into an Administrative Services Agreement pursuant to which the Company is obligated to will pay an affiliate of the Sponsor a total

of $10,000 per month, until the earlier of the completion of the initial Business Combination and the liquidation of the
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trust assets, for office space, secretarial and administrative services. Upon completion of the initial Business Combination or liquidation, the Company will

cease paying these monthly fees.

For the for each of the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, the Company expensed $30,000 and

$90,000, respectively, for the services provided through the Administrative Services Agreement. As of September 30, 2023, March 31, 2024 and December 31

2023, the balance due under the agreement was $60,000 $120,000 and $90,000, respectively, and was included in Due to related party. As of December 31

2022, the Company had no amounts due to the Sponsor related to the Administrative Services Agreement.
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Related Party Loans

On May 24, 2021, the Company and the Sponsor entered into a loan agreement, whereby the Sponsor agreed to loan the Company an aggregate of $300,000

to cover expenses related to the Initial Public Offering pursuant to a promissory note (the “Loan”). This loan was non-interest bearing and payable on the earlier

of June 30, 2022 or the completion of the Initial Public Offering (the “Maturity Date”). There were no amounts outstanding related to the Loan as of September

30, 2023 March 31, 2024 as the Loan had been fully paid at the IPO. IPO Date.

Working Capital Loans
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In order to finance transaction costs in connection with a Business Combination, the Sponsor or an affiliate of the Sponsor, or certain of the Company’s officers

and directors may, but are not obligated to, loan the Company funds as may be required (“Working Capital Loans”). If the Company completes a Business

Combination, the Company would repay the Working Capital Loans out of the proceeds of the Trust Account released to the Company. Otherwise, the Working

Capital Loans would be repaid only out of funds held outside the Trust Account. In the event that a Business Combination does not close, the Company may

use a portion of proceeds held outside the Trust Account to repay the Working Capital Loans but no proceeds held in the Trust Account would be used to repay

the Working Capital Loans. The Working Capital Loans would either be repaid upon consummation of a Business Combination or, at the lender’s discretion, up

to $1,500,000 of such Working Capital Loans may be convertible into warrants of the post Business Combination entity at a price of $1.50 per warrant. The

warrants would be identical to the Private Placement Warrants. As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, no amounts were due under the Working

Capital Loans.

Loans Payable

On May 7, 2023, the Company issued an unsecured promissory note (the “Promissory Note”) in the principal amount of up to $1,500,000 to the Sponsor. The

Promissory Note obliges the Company to repay the total amount drawn (which will be in the form of a non-convertible working capital loan), together with

accrued interest at the rate of 6% on the total amount drawn (the “Interest”), provided that the total repayment amount shall not exceed $1,500,000 plus the

applicable Interest. The Note is repayable in full on the earlier of December 31, 2023 or the consummation of the Company’s initial business combination.

On December 7, 2023, the Company the Sponsor amended and restated the Promissory Note (the “Amended “First Amended Promissory Note”) to, among

other things (i) increase the principal amount that may be drawn upon by the Company to up to $3,500,000, (ii) amend the rate at which interest accrues on

outstanding principal amounts to (a) 6.0% for any principal amount drawn down up to $1,500,00 $1,500,000 and (b) 18.0% for any principal amount drawn

down greater than $1,500,000, and (iii) amend the maturity date to the earlier of (a) the closing of the Business Combination or (b) February 28, 2024.

On March 26, 2024, the Company further amended and restated the Promissory Note (the “Second A&R Promissory Note”) to, among other things (i) increase

the principal amount that may be drawn upon by the Company to up to $4,000,000, and (ii) amend the maturity date to the earlier of (a) the closing of the

Business Combination or (b) May 7, 2024.

Through September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company received an aggregate of $1,870,000 $3,777,500 and $2,752,500,

respectively, in proceeds from the Sponsor under the Amended Promissory Note. Note, as amended. The Company recorded the interest expense of

$37,200 $184,500 and $112,200 $0 on the Amended Promissory Note for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2023, March 31, 2024 and

2023, respectively.

On May 10, 2024, the Company and the Sponsor further amended and restated the Second A&R Promissory Note (the “Third A&R Promissory Note”) to (i)

increase the principal amount of the Third A&R Promissory Note that may be drawn upon by the Company up to $4,500,000, and (ii) amend the maturity date

to the earlier of (x) the closing of the Business Combination or (y) August 28, 2024.

As of May 20, 2024, there was an outstanding balance of $4,227,500 under the Third A&R Promissory Note.
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Note 5—Commitments and Contingencies

Registration Rights

The holders of Founder Shares, Private Placement Warrants and Warrants that may be issued upon conversion of working capital loans, if any, will be entitled

to registration rights (in the case of the Founder Shares, only after conversion of such shares to Class A common stock) pursuant to a registration rights

agreement to be signed on or before the date of the prospectus for the Initial Public Offering. These holders will be entitled to certain demand and “piggyback”

registration rights. The Company will bear the expenses incurred in connection with the filing of any such registration statements.

Underwriting Agreement

The Company paid an underwriting discount of 2.0% of the per Unit offering price to the underwriters at the closing of the Initial Public Offering, with an

additional fee of 3.5% of the gross offering proceeds payable only upon the Company’s completion of its Initial Business Combination (the “Deferred Discount”).
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The Deferred Discount of $6,037,500 will become payable to the underwriters from the amounts held in the Trust Account solely in the event the Company

completes its Initial Business Combination.

On May 8, 2023, the Company received a letter providing notice from the representative of the underwriters, waiving any entitlement to their portion of the

$6,037,500 deferred underwriting fee that accrued from their participation as the underwriters of the IPO as they have not been involved in the Business

Combination process. This deferred underwriting discount, which previously increased the
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accumulated deficit due to the accretion of the Class A Common stock subject to possible redemption, was recorded as a recovery in the accumulated deficit

during the nine- months ended September 30, 2023. second quarter of 2023.

Note 6—Warrants

Public Warrants may only be exercised for a whole number of shares. No fractional Public Warrants will be issued upon separation of the Units and only whole

Public Warrants will trade. The Public Warrants will become exercisable on the later of (a)  30  days after the completion of a Business Combination or

(b)  12  months from the closing of the Initial Public Offering; provided in each case that the Company has an effective registration statement under the

Securities Act covering the Class A common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants and a current prospectus relating to them is available and such

shares are registered, qualified or exempt from registration under the securities, or blue sky, laws of the state of residence of the holder (or holders are

permitted to exercise their warrants on a cashless basis under certain circumstances as a result of the Company’s failure to have an effective registration

statement by the 60th business day after the closing of the initial Business Combination. The Company has agreed that as soon as practicable, but in no event

later than 15 business days after the closing of its initial Business Combination, the Company will use its commercially reasonable efforts to file with the SEC

and have an effective registration statement covering the Class A common stock issuable upon exercise of the Public Warrants and will use its commercially

reasonable efforts to cause the same to become effective within 60 business days after the closing of the Company’s initial Business Combination and to

maintain a current prospectus relating to those Class A common stock until the Public Warrants expire or are redeemed. If the shares issuable upon exercise of

the Public Warrants are not registered under the Securities Act in accordance with the above requirements, the Company will be required to permit holders to

exercise their warrants on a cashless basis. However, no Public Warrant will be exercisable for cash or on a cashless basis, and the Company will not be

obligated to issue any shares to holders seeking to exercise their Public Warrants, unless the issuance of the shares upon such exercise is registered or

qualified under the securities laws of the state of the exercising holder, or an exemption from registration is available. Notwithstanding the above, if the

Company’s Class A common stock are at the time of any exercise of a Public Warrant not listed on a national securities exchange such that they satisfy the

definition of a “covered security” under Section 18(b)(1) of the Securities Act, the Company may, at its option, require holders of Public Warrants who exercise

their warrants to do so on a “cashless basis” in accordance with Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act and, in the event the Company so elects, it will not be

required to file or maintain in effect a registration statement, and in the event the Company does not so elect, it will use its commercially reasonable efforts to

register or qualify the shares under applicable blue sky laws to the extent an exemption is not available.

The warrants have an exercise price of $11.50 per share, subject to adjustments, and will expire five years after the completion of a Business Combination or

earlier upon redemption or liquidation. In addition, if (x)  the Company issues additional Class A common stock or equity-linked securities for capital raising

purposes in connection with the closing of the initial Business Combination at an issue price or effective issue price of less than $9.20 per share of Class A

common stock (with such issue price or effective issue price to be determined in good faith by the board of directors and, in the case of any such issuance to

the Sponsor or its affiliates, without
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taking into account any Founder Shares held by the Sponsor or such affiliates, as applicable, prior to such issuance) (the “Newly Issued Price”), (y)  the

aggregate gross proceeds from such issuances represent more than 60% of the total equity proceeds, and interest thereon, available for the funding of the
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initial Business Combination on the date of the consummation of the initial Business Combination (net of redemptions) and (z) the volume weighted average

trading price of Class A common stock during the 20 trading day period starting on the trading day prior to the day on which the Company consummates the

initial Business Combination (such price, the “Market Value”) is below $9.20 per share, the exercise price of the warrants will be adjusted (to the nearest cent)

to be equal to 115% of the higher of the Market Value and the Newly Issued Price, and the $18.00 per share redemption trigger price described under

“Redemption of warrants for Class A common stock” and “Redemption of warrants for cash” will be adjusted (to the nearest cent) to be equal to 180% of the

higher of the Market Value and the Newly Issued Price.

The Private Placement Warrants are identical to the Public Warrants, except that, (i)  they will not be redeemable by the Company, (ii)  they (including the

Class  A common stock issuable upon exercise of these warrants) may not, subject to certain limited exceptions, be transferred, assigned, or sold by the

Sponsor until 30 days after the completion of the initial Business Combination, (iii) they may be exercised by the holders on a cashless basis and (iv) they are

subject to registration rights.

Redemption of warrants when the price per share of Class A common stock equals or exceeds $18.00: Once the Public Warrants become exercisable, the

Company may redeem the outstanding Public Warrants:

● in whole and not in part;
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● at a price of $0.01 per warrant;

● upon a minimum of 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption; and

● if, and only if, the closing price of the Class A common stock equals or exceeds $18.00 per share (as adjusted for adjustments to the number of
shares issuable upon exercise or the exercise price of a warrant as described under the heading “—Warrants—Public Stockholders’ Warrants—
Anti-Dilution Adjustments”) on the trading day prior to the date on which we send the notice of redemption to the warrant holders.

The Company will not redeem the Public Warrants as described above unless an effective registration statement under the Securities Act covering the Class A

common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants is effective and a current prospectus relating to those shares of Class A common stock is available

throughout the 30-day  redemption period. Any such exercise would not be on a cashless basis and would require the exercising warrant holder to pay the

exercise price for each warrant being exercised.

In no event will the Company be required to net cash settle any Public Warrant upon the exercise thereof. If the Company is unable to complete a Business

Combination within the Combination Period and the Company liquidates the funds held in the Trust Account, holders of warrants will not receive any of such

funds with respect to their warrants, nor will they receive any distribution from the Company’s assets held outside of the Trust Account with the respect to such

warrants. Accordingly, the warrants may expire worthless.

Note 7—Stockholders’ Deficit

Preferred Stock—The Company is authorized to issue 1,000,000 preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share, with such designations, voting and other rights

and preferences as may be determined from time to time by the Company’s board of directors. As of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 and December 31,

2022 December 31, 2023, there was no preferred stock issued or outstanding.

Class A Common Stock—The Company is authorized to issue 100,000,000 Class A common stock with a par value of $0.0001 per share. In August 2023, in

connection with the Special Meeting as disclosed in Note 1 above, stockholders holding 3,825,869 shares of Class A common stock exercised their right to

redeem such shares for $41,057,655, representing the pro rata portion of the funds in the Company's Company’s Trust Account as of the date of the Special

Meeting. In February 2024, in connection with the 2024 Special Meeting as disclosed in Note 1 above, stockholders holding 6,032,023 shares of Class A

common stock exercised their right to redeem such shares for $67,173,998, representing the pro rata portion of the funds in the Company’s Trust Account as of

the date of the Special Meeting. As of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, there were 13,424,131 7,392,108 and

17,250,000 13,424,131 shares of Class A common stock issued and outstanding subject to possible redemption, respectively.
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Class B Common Stock—The Company is authorized to issue 10,000,000 Class B common stock with a par value of $0.0001 per share. As of September 30,

2023 March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, 4,312,500 shares of Class B common stock were issued and outstanding.

Holders of shares of Class A common stock and holders of shares of Class B common stock will vote together as a single class on all matters submitted to a

vote of our stockholders except as required by law. Unless specified in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, or as required by applicable

provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law or applicable stock exchange rules, the affirmative vote of a majority of our shares of common stock that

are voted is required to approve any such matter voted on by our stockholders.
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Note 8—Income Taxes

While ASC 740 identifies usage of an effective annual tax rate for purposes of an interim provision, it does allow for estimating individual elements in the

current period if they are significant, unusual or infrequent. Computing the effective tax rate for the Company is complicated due to the potential impact of the

timing of any Business Combination expenses and the actual interest income that will be recognized during the year. The Company has taken a position as to

the calculation of income tax expense in a current period based on ASC 740-270-25-3 which states, “If an entity is unable to estimate a part of its ordinary

income (or loss) or the related tax (benefit) but is otherwise able to make a reasonable estimate, the tax (or benefit) applicable to the item that cannot be

estimated shall be reported in the interim period in which the item is reported.” The Company believes its calculation to be a reliable estimate and allows it to

properly take into account the usual elements that can impact its annualized book income and its impact on the effective tax rate. As such, the Company is

computing its taxable loss and associated income tax provision based on actual results through March 31, 2024. The Company’s effective tax rate (“ETR”) is

calculated quarterly based upon current assumptions relating to the full year’s estimated operating results and various tax-related items. The Company’s ETR

was (40.15% (59.8%) and 0% (80.3%) for the three months ended September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 and 2022, respectively. The Company’s ETR was

(16.3%) and (24.4%) for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, 2023, respectively. The difference between the effective tax rate of (40.15%)

and (16.3% (59.8%) for the three- and nine-months three months ended September 30, 2023, respectively, March 31, 2024 and the U.S. federal statutory rate of

21% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 was primarily due to permanent differences resulting from transaction costs

associated with the Company’s proposed business combination (Note 1) and the interest and penalties incurred, and the temporary difference resulting from

the change in the valuation allowance. allowance recorded against the deferred taxes arising from the Company’s startup costs. The difference between the

effective tax rate of 0% and (24% (80.3%) for the three- and nine-months three months ended September 30, 2022, respectively, March 31, 2023 and the U.S.

federal statutory rate of 21% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 March 31, 2023 was primarily due to the utilization of net operating

losses, and the change in the valuation allowance. allowance, resulting from recognizing a full valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets arising from

the Company’s startup costs.

As of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024, and December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, the Company has no uncertain tax positions related to federal and

state income taxes. The 2022 and 2021 federal tax returns for the Company remain open for examination. In the event that the Company is assessed interest

or penalties at some point in the future, it will be classified in the unaudited condensed financial statements as tax expense. For the three months ended March

31, 2024, the Company incurred $119,958 of interest and penalties on the unremitted income tax obligations. No interest or penalties were incurred during the

three months ended March 31, 2023.

Note 9—Subsequent Events

The Company did not identify any subsequent events that would have required adjustment or disclosure in the unaudited condensed financial statements other

than below:

From October 1, 2023 to November 28, 2023, the Company drew $662,500 of funds from its Amended Promissory Note in order to fund the below mentioned

extensions, and working capital needs.
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On October 23, 2023 April 26, 2024, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial business combination by a period of one month,

or until November 28, 2023 May 28, 2024 in connection with which Company’s Sponsor deposited $280,000 $150,000 into the Company’s Trust Account.

On November 21, 2023, Company received a notice (the “Notice”) from the NYSE indicating that the Company is not in compliance with the NYSE’s continued

listing requirements under the timely filing criteria set forth in Section 802.01E of the NYSE Listed Company Manual (the “Listing Rule”) since the Company did

not file its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2023 (the “Form 10-Q”) with the Securities and Exchange Commission

(the “SEC”) on or before November 20, 2023, the extended period provided for the filing under Rule 12b-25(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as

amended (the “Exchange Act”). The Notice has no immediate effect on the listing of the Company’s securities on the NYSE. The NYSE informed the Company

that, under the NYSE's rules, the Company has six months from the original due date of the Form 10-Q, or until May 20, 2024, to file the Form 10-Q and regain

compliance with the Listing Rule. The NYSE further noted that, if the Company fails to file the Form 10-Q, and any subsequent filings, within the six-month

period, the NYSE may grant, in its sole discretion, an extension of up to six additional months for the Company to regain compliance, depending on the specific

circumstances. The NYSE Notice also noted that the NYSE may nevertheless commence delisting proceedings at any time if it deems that the circumstances

warrant.

On November 28, 2023 May 10, 2024, the Company further extended and the period it has to consummate an initial business combination by a period of one

month, or until December 28, 2023 in connection with which Company’s Sponsor deposited $280,000 into the Company’s Trust Account.

On December 7, 2023, the Company further amended and restated the Secondary A&R Promissory Note (the “Third A&R Promissory Note”) to among other

things (i) increase the principal amount  of the Third A&R Promissory Note that may be drawn upon by the Company to up to $3,500,000, $4,500,000, and (ii)

amend the rate at which interest accrues on outstanding principal amounts to (a) 6.0% for any principal amount drawn down up to $1,500,00 and (b) 18.0% for

any principal amount drawn down greater than $1,500,000, and (iii) amend the maturity date to the earlier of (a) (x) the closing of the Business Combination or

(b) February 28, 2024 (y) August 28, 2024.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations in conjunction with our unaudited condensed financial statements

for the period ended September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024, and related notes included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our audited

consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in Item 8 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,

2022 December 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on March 30, 2023 April 16, 2024 (the “2022 “2023 Form 10-K”). This discussion and analysis and other parts of

this filing contain forward-looking statements based upon current beliefs, plans and expectations that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual

results and the timing of selected events could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of several factors,

including those set forth under Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors” in the 2022 2023 Form 10-K, under Part II, Item IA. "Risk “Risk Factors,” and under the heading

“Forward-Looking Statements” elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Overview

We are a blank check company incorporated on March 8, 2021 as a Delaware corporation and formed for the purpose of effecting a merger, capital stock

exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar business combination with one or more businesses or entities. We intend to effectuate

our initial business combination using cash from the proceeds of our IPO and the sale of the private placement warrants, our shares, debt or a combination of

cash, equity and debt. The Company’s sponsor is Everest Consolidator Sponsor, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Sponsor”).

The issuance of additional shares of our common stock in a business combination:

● may significantly dilute the equity interest of investors in the IPO, which dilution would increase if the anti-dilution provisions in the Class  B
common stock resulted in the issuance of Class A common stock on a greater than one-to-one basis upon conversion of the Class B common
stock;

● may subordinate the rights of holders of shares of our Class A common stock if shares of preferred stock are issued with rights senior to those
afforded our Class A common stock;
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● could cause a change in control if a substantial number of shares of our Class A common stock are issued, which may affect, among other things,
our ability to use our net operating loss carry forwards, if any, and could result in the resignation or removal of our present officers and directors;

● may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control of us by diluting the share ownership or voting rights of a person seeking to
obtain control of us; and

● May adversely affect prevailing market prices for our units, shares of Class A common stock and/or warrants; and may not result in adjustment to
the exercise price of our warrants

Similarly, if we issue debt or otherwise incur significant debt, it could result in:

● default and foreclosure on our assets if our operating revenues after an initial business combination are insufficient to repay our debt obligations;

● acceleration of our obligations to repay the indebtedness even if we make all principal and interest payments when due if we breach certain
covenants that require the maintenance of certain financial ratios or reserves without a waiver or renegotiation of that covenant;

● our immediate payment of all principal and accrued interest, if any, if the debt is payable on demand;

● our inability to obtain necessary additional financing if the debt contains covenants restricting our ability to obtain such financing while the debt is
outstanding;
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● our inability to pay dividends on our Class A common stock;

● using a substantial portion of our cash flow to pay principal and interest on our debt, which will reduce the funds available for dividends on our
Class A common stock if declared, expenses, capital expenditures, acquisitions and other general corporate purposes;

● limitations on our flexibility in planning for and reacting to changes in our business and in the industry in which we operate;

● increased vulnerability to adverse changes in general economic, industry and competitive conditions and adverse changes in government
regulation; and

● limitations on our ability to borrow additional amounts for expenses, capital expenditures, acquisitions, debt service requirements, execution of our
strategy and other purposes and other disadvantages compared to our competitors who have less debt.

First and Second Extensions of the Period to Complete the Initial Proposed Business Combination

On February 28, 2023, in accordance with our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and the terms of the trust agreement entered into between us

and Equiniti Trust, LLC (f/k/a American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC), dated as of November 23, 2021 (the “Trust Agreement”), we initially extended

the period of time in which we must consummate an initial business combination by a period of three months, from February 28, 2023 to  May 28, 2023 (the

“Initial Extension”). In connection with the Initial Extension, our Sponsor deposited an aggregate of $1,725,000 into the Trust Account, representing $0.10 per

public share, in exchange for the our issuance of to the Sponsor of 1,150,000 Private Placement Warrants, at a rate of $1.50 per private placement warrant,

with the same terms as the Private Placement Warrants issued in connection with the closing of our initial public offering (“IPO”). The Initial Extension was the

first of two three-month extensions permitted under our governing documents.

On May 26, 2023, we further extended the period we had to consummate an initial business combination by a period of three months, or until August 28, 2023

(the “Second Extension”). In connection with the Second Extension, the Sponsor deposited an aggregate of $1,725,000 into the Trust Account, representing

$0.10 per public share, in exchange for our issuance of to the Sponsor of 1,150,000 Private Placement Warrants, at a rate of $1.50 per private placement

warrant, with the same terms as the Private Placement Warrants issued in connection with the closing of the IPO. The Second Extension was the second of

two three-month extensions permitted under our governing documents. The Company’s stockholders were not entitled to vote on or redeem their shares in

connection with the Initial Extension or the Second Extension.

In connection with the Sponsor’s financing of the Initial Extension and the Second Extension, the Sponsor entered into two promissory notes in the aggregate

amount of $3,450,000 ($1,725,000 for each extension) at an interest rate of 16% per annum (each, an “Extension Note” and together, the “Extension Notes”)

with Everest Consolidator – A Series of Master Fund I LLC (the “Noteholder”), a third-party investor. In connection with the Sponsor’s issuance of the Extension

Notes, the Company entered into a Conditional Guaranty Agreements in favor of the Noteholder in respect of each Notes. See “—Contractual Obligations and

Commitments,” below.
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Proposed Business Combination Agreement

On May 19, 2023, the Company entered into a business combination agreement with Unifund Financial Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“New

PubCo” or “Unifund”), Unifund Merger Sub Inc., a Delaware corporation and a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of New PubCo (“Merger Sub”), Unifund Holdings,

LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Holdings”), Credit Card Receivables Fund Incorporated, an Ohio corporation (“CCRF”), USV, LLC, an Ohio limited

liability company (“USV” and together with Holdings and CCRF, the “Target Companies”), and, solely for limited purposes set forth therein, the Sponsor (the

“Business Combination Agreement” and the proposed business combination contemplated thereby, the “Unifund Business Combination”). The Target Company

group specializes in the acquisition and servicing of consumer debt receivables and offers consumer data analytics and tailored recovery solutions for major

banks, financial institutions and other creditors across the United States. The Business Combination Agreement has been approved by the boards of directors

or board of managers, as applicable, of each of the Company, the Target Companies and New PubCo. In connection with the Unifund Business Combination,

certain related agreements have been, or will be entered into on or prior to the closing of the Unifund Business Combination, including the New PubCo

Registration Rights and Lock-
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up Lock-up Agreement, the Sponsor Support Agreement and the Holder Support Agreement (each as defined and described in the Company’s Current Report

on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 22, 2023).

The consummation of the proposed Unifund Business Combination is subject to certain conditions as further described in the Business Combination

Agreement. The closing of the proposed Unifund Business Combination is expected to occur no later than three business days following the satisfaction or

waiver of all of the closing conditions, or at such other time date and place as the Company and the Target Companies may mutually agree in writing. The

Business Combination Agreement may be terminated under certain customary and limited circumstances at any time prior to the consummation thereof and

the Company can provide no assurance that the Business Combination will be consummated at the expected time, or at all.

For a description of the terms of the Business Combination Agreement and related agreements, refer to Note 1. Description of Organization and Business

Operations to the unaudited condensed financial statements contained elsewhere in this Quarter Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, to the Company’s Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 22, 2023, and to the prospectus/proxy statement included in the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No.

333-273362) initially filed with the SEC on July 21, 2023 by the Company and the NewPubco in relation to the proposed Unifund Business Combination (such

registration statement, as subsequently amended or supplemented, the “ Registration “Registration Statement”).

Waiver and Consent to Business Combination Agreement

On February 25, 2024, the Company, Sponsor and Holdings entered into a Waiver and Consent to Business Combination Agreement (the “Waiver and

Consent”). The Waiver and Consent, among other things, permits the solicitation of, exploration and negotiation of, entry into, and consummation of (a) one or

more potential sales, whether structured as a sale of equity of some or all of the Unifund Entities, a sale of some, all or substantially all of the assets of some or

all of the Unifund Entities or as a merger, consolidation or otherwise, including, without limitation, sales of one or more of the receivables portfolios held by any

of the Unifund Entities, which
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may or may not be made in the ordinary course of their respective business (a “Sale Transaction”) and (b) one or more financing transactions whether

structured as debt, equity or a combination thereof, to provide for among other things the refinancing of the Unifund Entities’ existing senior secured credit

facility (each, a “Financing Transaction” and together with any Sale Transaction, each, a “Strategic Transaction”). The Waiver and Consent further waived any

past, current, or future defaults under the Business Combination Agreement caused by, arising from, or in connection with, any Strategic Transaction and

further waived any and all defaults or breaches of the Business Combination Agreement by the Unifund Entities that may have occurred prior to or on the date
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of signing the Waiver and Consent. The Waiver and Consent resulted in amendments to the termination provisions of the Business Combination Agreement as

discussed below.

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q does not give effect to the proposed Unifund Business Combination and does not contain the risks associated with the

proposed Unifund Business Combination. Such risks and effects relating to the proposed Unifund Business Combination are included in the Registration

Statement.

Recent DevelopmentsExtension of Time to Complete an Initial Business Combination

On February 28, 2023, in accordance with our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and the terms of the trust agreement entered into

between us and Equiniti Trust, LLC (f/k/a American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC), dated as of November 23, 2021 (the “Trust Agreement”),

the Company extended the period it has to consummate an initial Business Combination by a period of three months, from February 28, 2023 until

May 28, 2023 (the “Initial Extension”). In connection with the Initial Extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited an aggregate of $1,725,000 into

the Company’s Trust Account, representing $0.10 per public share, in exchange for the Company’s issuance to the Sponsor of 1,150,000 Private

Placement Warrants, at a rate of $1.50 per private placement warrant, with the same terms as the Private Placement Warrants issued in connection

with the closing of the Company’s IPO.

On May 26, 2023, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial business combination by a period of three months, or until August

28, 2023 (the “Second Extension”). In connection with the Second Extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited an aggregate of $1,725,000 into the

Company’s Trust Account, representing $0.10 per public share, in exchange for the Company’s issuance to the Sponsor of 1,150,000 Private Placement

Warrants, at a rate of $1.50 per private placement warrant, with the same terms as the Private Placement Warrants issued in connection with the closing of the

Company’s IPO.

The Company’s stockholders were not entitled to vote on or redeem their shares in connection with the Initial Extension or the Second Extension.

In connection with the financing of the Initial Extension and the Second Extension, the Sponsor entered into promissory notes in the aggregate amount of

$3,450,000 ($1,725,000 for each extension) at an interest rate of 16% per annum (each, an “Extension Note” and together, the “Extension Notes”) with Everest

Consolidator – A Series of Master Fund I LLC (the “Noteholder”), a third-party investor. In connection with the Sponsor’s issuance of the Extension Notes, the

Company entered into a Conditional Guaranty Agreements in favor of the Noteholder in respect of each Note (each term as defined herein). See “Part I, Item 2.

“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Contractual Obligations and Commitments” for a description of the

Conditional Guarantees.

2023 Special Meeting of Stockholders

On August 24, 2023, we the Company convened a special meeting of stockholders (the “Special “2023 Special Meeting”) at which our the stockholders

approved, among other items, (i) a proposal to amend our the Company’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation to provide our the board of directors

with the right to extend (the “Monthly Extensions”) the date by which we have the Company has to consummate a business combination (the “Combination

Period”) up to an additional six (6) times for one (1) month each time, from August 28, 2023 to February 28, 2024 (as extended, the “Extended Date”) (the

“Extension “2023 Extension Amendment Proposal”); (ii) a proposal to approve the adoption of an amendment (the “Trust “2023 Trust Amendment”) to the Trust

Agreement to allow us the Company to extend the Combination Period up to an additional six (6) times for one (1) month each time from August 28, 2023 to

February 28, 2024, the Extended Date, by depositing into the Trust Account, for each one-month extension, the lesser of (a) $280,000 and (b) $0.035 per

public share then outstanding (the “Trust Amendment Proposal”); and (iii) a proposal to amend our the amended and restated certificate of incorporation to

eliminate the limitation that the Company shall not redeem public shares to the extent that such redemption would cause our the Company’s net tangible assets

to be less than $5,000,001 (the “Redemption Limitation”) to allow us the Company to redeem public shares irrespective of whether such redemption would

exceed the
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Redemption Limitation (the “Redemption “2023 Redemption Limitation Amendment Proposal” and together with 2023 Extension Amendment Proposal and the

Trust Amendment Proposal, the “Charter “2023 Charter Amendment Proposals”).

In connection with the 2023 Charter Amendment Proposals, holders of our the Company’s public shares were given the opportunity to redeem their public

shares for a pro rata share of the funds on deposit in the Trust Account as of two business days prior to such approval, including any interest earned on the
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trust account Trust Account deposits (net of taxes payable), divided by the number of then outstanding public shares. A total of 63 stockholders elected to

redeem an Stockholders holding the aggregate of 3,825,869 shares of Class A Common Stock elected to redeem their shares at a per share redemption price

of $10.73, totaling for the total redemption of $41,057,655. Following the 2023 Special Meeting and associated redemptions, we the Company had

approximately $144.9 million remaining in the Trust Account.

As of The Company utilized the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the Sponsor has deposited an aggregate of $1,120,000 into the Trust Account in

connection with the first, second, third and fourth six one-month extensions of the Combination Period pursuant permitted by the 2023 Charter Amendment

Proposals to extend the Combination period from September 28, 2023 to February 28, 2024, in connection with which the Sponsor deposited an aggregate of

$1,680,000 into the Company’s Trust Account.

2024 Special Meeting of Stockholders

The Company’s board of directors determined that there would not be sufficient time before the February 28, 2024 extension deadline to complete a business

combination. Accordingly, the Company convened a special meeting of stockholders on February 26, 2024 (the “2024 Special Meeting”) at which at which our

stockholders approved (i) a proposal to further amend our amended and restated certificate of incorporation to provide our board of directors with the right to

extend the Combination Period up to an additional six (6) times for one (1) month each time, from February 28, 2024 to August 28, 2024 (the “2024 Charter

Amendment Proposal”) and (ii) a proposal to approve the adoption of an amendment to the Trust Agreement to allow the Company to extend the Combination

Period up to an additional six (6) times for one (1) month each time from February 28, 2024 to August 28, 2024, by depositing into the Trust Account, for each

one-month extension, the lesser of (a) $150,000 and (b) $0.030 per public share then outstanding (the “2024 Trust Amendment Proposal,” and together with

Extension Amendment Proposal and the 2024 Trust Amendment Proposal, the “2024 Charter Amendment Proposals. Proposals”).

In connection with the 2024 Charter Amendment Proposals, holders of the Company’s public shares were given the opportunity to redeem their public shares

for a pro rata share of the funds on deposit in the Trust Account, including any interest earned on the Trust Account deposits (net of taxes payable), divided by

the number of then outstanding public shares. Stockholders holding 6,032,023 Public Shares exercised their right to redeem such shares for a pro rata portion

of the funds in the Company’s trust account. As a result, approximately $67.2 million (approximately $11.14 per Public Share) was removed from the

Company’s trust account to pay such redeeming holders of Public Shares. Following the redemptions, a total of 7,392,108 Public Shares remained outstanding

and eligible for redemption, and the Company had approximately $82.7 million remaining in the Trust Account.

On February 28, 2024, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial Business Combination by a period of one month, or until

March 28, 2024. In connection with the one-month extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited $150,000 into the Company’s Trust Account.

On March 26, 2024, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial Business Combination by a period of one month, or until April 28,

2024. In connection with the one-month extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited $150,000 into the Company’s Trust Account.

On April 26, 2024, the Company further extended the period it has to consummate an initial Business Combination by a period of one month, or until May 28,

2024. In connection with the one-month extension, the Company’s Sponsor deposited $150,000 into the Company’s Trust Account.

The Combination Period currently expires on December 28, 2023 May 28, 2024. The Company may extend the Combination Period for up to two three

additional one-month periods to February 28, 2024. August 28, 2024 pursuant to the 2024 Charter Amendment Extensions.
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Results of Operations and Known Trends or Future Events

We have neither engaged in any operations nor generated any revenues to date. Our only activities from March 8, 2021 (inception) through September 30,

2023 March 31, 2024 were organizational activities, the activities necessary for our IPO, and those to complete the initial business combination. We do not

expect to generate any operating revenues until after the completion of our initial business combination. We expect to generate non-operating income in the

form of interest income on marketable securities held in the trust account established at the time of the IPO to hold certain proceeds from the IPO and the

concurrent sale of the private placement warrants. We incur expenses as a result of being a public company (for legal, financial reporting, accounting and

auditing compliance), as well as the transaction costs in relation to the proposed Unifund Business Combination.

For the three months ended September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024, we had a net loss of $1,594,960 $1,199,055, which consists of investment income held in the

trust account Trust Account of $2,225,997, $1,634,399, offset by general and administrative expenses of $3,187,663, Conditional Guarantee $2,062,840,
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expense of $139,134, $137,622 related to the increase in conditional guarantee balance, interest expense of $37,200, $184,500, and the provision for income

taxes of $456,960. $448,492. Of the $3,187,663 $2,062,840 of general and administrative expenses, approximately $2.4 million $1.6 million relate to business

combination costs and the remaining approximately $0.4 million consisted of operating expenses, including but not limited to legal, accounting, and insurance

costs.

For the nine three months ended September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023, we had a net loss of $9,215,480, $857,507, which consists of investment income held in

the trust account Trust Account of $6,294,454, $1,897,729, offset by general and administrative expenses of $10,400,770, Conditional Guarantee expense of

$3,706,339, interest expense of $112,200 $2,373,223 and the provision for income taxes of $1,290,625. Of the $10,400,770 of general $382,013. General and

administrative expenses approximately $8.4 million relate during the three months ended March 31, 2023 consisted of operating expenses, including but not

limited to business combination costs. legal, accounting, and insurance costs, and costs to identify an acquisition target.

For the three months ended September 30, 2022 March 31, 2024, we had the net loss increased to $1,199,055, as compared to $857,507 for the three months

ended March 31, 2023, due to the decrease in dividend and interest income of $222,640, which consists of and the increase in income tax expense, partially

offset by the decrease in general and administrative expenses of $379,100, which was offset by investment income of $601,740.

expenses. For the nine three months ended September 30, 2022 March 31, 2024, we had a net loss of $559,203, the dividend and interest income decreased

to $1,634,399, as compared to $1,897,729 for the three months ended March 31, 2023, due to the decrease in the principal balance in the Trust Account which

consists of general resulted from the August 2023 and administrative expenses of $1,301,314 and February 2024 redemptions. For the three months ended

March 31, 2024, the income tax expense increased to $448,492, as compared to $382,013 for the three months ended March 31, 2023, due to interest and

penalties of $109,576 which were offset by investment $119,958 on unremitted income tax liabilities. General and administrative costs remained consistent

during the three months ended March 31, 2024 as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023 due to the Company’s continued efforts towards

completion of $851,687. the Unifund Business Combination.

Liquidity, Capital Resources and Going Concern

Our liquidity needs were satisfied prior to the completion of our IPO through $18,750 paid by our sponsor, Everest Consolidator Sponsor, LLC (after giving

effect to the repurchase by us of 1,437,500 shares of our Class B common stock from our sponsor for an aggregate purchase price of $6,250) to cover certain

of our offering and formation costs in exchange for the issuance of the founder shares to our sponsor.

We During 2021, we generated net proceeds of $177,606,386 from the (i) the sale of the units in the IPO, after deducting offering expenses, underwriting

commissions, but excluding deferred underwriting commissions, and (ii) the sale of the private placement warrants. Of this amount, $175,950,000 are held were

deposited in the trust account, Trust Account, which includes included $6,037,500 of deferred underwriting commissions. commissions (entitlement to which has

since been waived by the underwriter). The proceeds held in the trust account Trust Account are invested only in U.S. government treasury obligations with a

maturity of 185 180 days or less or in mutual funds meeting certain conditions under Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act which invest only in direct

U.S. government treasury obligations.

On May 7, 2023 In August 2023, the Company withdrew $1,075,252 of interest and dividend income earned in the Trust Account (the “Withdrawn Trust Funds”)

for payment of the Company’s franchise and income tax liabilities. The Withdrawn Trust Funds were restricted for payment of such tax liabilities under the

Company’s certificate incorporation and the terms of the Trust Agreement. Through September 30, 2023, the Company issued mistakenly used $752,885 of

Withdrawn Trust Funds for the payment of general operating expenses. In consultation with counsel, management determined that this use of funds was not in

accordance with the Trust Agreement. The Company disbursed an unsecured promissory note (the “Promissory Note”) in aggregate of $322,267, the principal

amount balance of up to $1,500,000 the Withdrawn Trust Funds, for payment of general operating expenses between October 1, 2023 and November 6, 2023,

also counter to the Sponsor. terms of the Trust Agreement. As of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, none of the $1,075,252 had been remitted to

satisfy franchise and income tax liabilities and such liabilities remain outstanding. The Promissory Note obligates the Company intends to repay the total

amount drawn (which will be in the form of a non-convertible working capital loan), together with accrued interest at the rate of 6% on the total amount drawn

(the “Interest”), provided that the total repayment amount shall not exceed $1,500,000 plus the applicable Interest. On December 7, 2023, the Company

amended and restated the Promissory Note (the “Amended Promissory Note”) raise additional funds prior to among other things (i) increase the principal

amount that may be drawn upon by the Company to up to $3,500,000, (ii) amend the rate at which interest accrues on outstanding principal amounts to (a)

6.0% for any principal amount drawn down up to $1,500,00 and (b) 18.0% for any principal amount drawn down greater than $1,500,000, and (iii) amend the

maturity date to the earlier of (a) the closing of the Business Combination or (b) February 28, 2024. Through September 30, 2023, to satisfy income and

franchise tax liabilities. In the Company received an aggregate of $1,870,000 in proceeds from the Sponsor under the Amended Promissory Note.

On May 8, 2023, the Company received a letter providing notice from the representative of the underwriters in the Company’s IPO, waiving any entitlement to

their portion of the $6,037,500 deferred underwriting fee that accrued from their participation as the underwriters of the IPO as they have not been involved in

the Business Combination process.
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event that a Business Combination does not close, any loan made to the Company for the purpose of paying overdue tax obligations that should have been

paid using the Withdrawn Trust Funds would be repaid only out of funds held outside the Trust Account. On May 8, 2024, the Sponsor executed a written

commitment (the “Commitment Letter”) to pay any amount that the Company is unable to pay that is owed to the Internal Revenue Service for federal income

tax or to the Division of Corporations of the State of Delaware for franchise tax, including upon and following a liquidation of the Trust Account, as a result of

the use Withdrawn Trust Funds for general corporate purposes. The Company believes that the Sponsor’s obligations under the Commitment Letter

accomplish the same outcome as restoring funds to the Trust Account in the event that the Trust Account is liquidated because the amounts withdrawn from

the Trust Account in the third quarter of 2023 were intended for the payment of tax obligations.

For the nine three months ended September 30, 2023, March 31, 2024 and 2023, cash used in operating activities was $2,809,565, which is related $522,003

and $253,390, respectively. The increase in cash used in operating activities was primarily due to the increased cash payments of for transaction costs.

In connection with the shareholder vote to approve the Extension Amendment Proposal at the Special Meeting on August 24, 2023, the holders of 3,825,869

shares of Class A common stock exercised their right to redeem such shares at a per share redemption price of approximately $10.73, and an aggregate of

$41,057,655 was withdrawn from the trust account.

As of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024, we had cash of $322,367 $26,973 held outside of the trust account Trust Account (reserved for tax

payments) payment) and marketable securities held in the trust account Trust Account of $145,772,470 (which includes $4,010,000 of funds deposited by the

Sponsor in connection with the Initial and Second Extensions and the first and second one-month extensions pursuant to the Charter Amendment Proposals,

$8,831,770 of interest income, and excludes the $41,057,655 which was withdrawn from the Trust as part of the Extension Amendment Proposal at the Special

Meeting on August 24 ,2023), $83,596,299 consisting of securities held in a mutual fund that invests in U.S. Treasury securities with a maturity of 180 days or

less. Interest income on the balance in the trust account Trust Account may be used by us to pay income and franchise taxes. Through September 30, 2023,

we withdrew $1,961,645 of interest earned on the trust account, inclusive of the of $1,075,252 withdrawn in August 2023, discussed below, to pay income

taxes and Delaware franchise taxes.

In August 2023, the Company withdrew $1,075,252 of interest and dividend income earned in the Trust Account for payment of the Company’s estimated

franchise and income tax liabilities. As of September 30, 2023 none of the $1,075,252 had been remitted to satisfy franchise and income tax liabilities. The

amount withdrawn was restricted for payment of such tax liabilities under the Company’s certificate incorporation and the terms of the Trust Agreement.

Through September 30, 2023, the Company mistakenly used $752,885 of these funds for the payments of general operating expenses counter to the terms of

the Trust Agreement. As of September 30, 2023, these funds (totaling $752,885) remain payable for franchise and income tax purposes.

We intend to use substantially all of the funds held in the trust account, Trust Account, including any amounts representing interest earned on the trust

account Trust Account (less taxes payable and deferred underwriting commissions, as applicable) payable), to complete our initial business combination. We

may withdraw interest income (if any) to pay franchise and income taxes. Our annual income tax obligations will depend on the amount of interest and other

income earned on the amounts held in the trust account. We expect the interest income earned on the amount in the trust account (if any) will be sufficient to

pay our taxes. Trust Account. To the extent that our equity or debt is used, in whole or in part, as consideration to complete our initial business combination, the

remaining proceeds held in the trust account Trust Account will be used as working capital to finance the operations of the target business or businesses, make

other acquisitions and pursue our growth strategies.

The $322,367 held outside of the trust account (reserved for tax payments) as of September 30, 2023, and a working capital deficit, excluding franchise and

income taxes, of $14,273,909 as of September 30, 2023, will not be sufficient to allow the Company to operate for at least the next 12 months from the

issuance of the condensed financial statements contained elsewhere in this Form 10-Q, assuming that a business combination is not consummated during that

time.

In order to finance transaction costs in connection with a Business Combination the Sponsor or an affiliate of the Sponsor, or certain of the Company’s officers

and directors may, but are not obligated to, loan the Company funds as may be required (“Working Capital Loans”). If the Company completes a Business

Combination, the Company would repay the Working Capital Loans out of the proceeds of the Trust Account released to the Company. Otherwise, the Working

Capital Loans would be repaid only out of funds held outside the Trust Account. In the event that a Business Combination does not close, the Company may

use a portion of proceeds held outside the Trust Account to repay the Working Capital Loans but no proceeds held in the Trust Account would be used to repay

the Working Capital Loans. The Working Capital Loans would either be repaid upon consummation of a Business Combination or, at the lender’s discretion, up

to $1,500,000 of such Working Capital Loans may be convertible into warrants of the post Business Combination entity at a price of $1.50 per warrant. The

warrants would be identical to the Private Placement Warrants. During As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, no amounts were due under the nine-

month period ended September 30, 2023 Working Capital Loans.

On May 7, 2023, the Company issued an unsecured promissory note (the “Promissory Note”) in the principal amount of up to $1,500,000 to the Sponsor. The

Promissory Note obligates the Company to repay the total amount drawn (in the form of a non-convertible working capital loan), together with accrued interest

at the rate of 6% on the total amount drawn (the “Interest”), provided that the total repayment amount shall not exceed $1,500,000 plus the applicable Interest.
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On December 7, 2023, the Company and the Sponsor amended and restated the Promissory Note (the “First Amended Promissory Note”) to, among other

things (i) increase the principal amount that may be drawn upon by the Company to up to $3,500,000, (ii) amend the rate at which interest accrues on

outstanding principal amounts to (a) 6.0% for any principal amount drawn down up to $1,500,000 and (b) 18.0% for any principal amount drawn down greater

than $1,500,000, and (iii) amend the maturity date to the earlier of (a) the closing of the Business Combination or (b) February 28, 2024.

On March 26, 2024, the Company and the Sponsor further amended and restated Amended and Restated Promissory Note (the “Second A&R Promissory

Note”), to, among other things, (i) increase the principal amount of the Second A&R Promissory Note that may be drawn upon by the Company up to

$4,000,000, and (ii) amend the maturity date to the earlier of (x) the closing of the Business Combination or (y) May 7, 2024.

Through March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company received an aggregate of $1,870,000 $3,777,500 and $2,752,500, respectively, in proceeds

from the form Sponsor under the Promissory Note, as amended. During the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company drew an aggregate of

a $1,025,000 and $0, respectively, of funds under the Promissory Note, as amended, in order to fund the First 2024 Monthly Extension, the Second 2024

Monthly Extension, and working capital loan needs.
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On May 10, 2024, the Company and the Sponsor further amended and restated the Secondary A&R Promissory Note (the “Third A&R Promissory Note”) to (i)

increase the principal amount of the Third A&R Promissory Note that may be drawn upon by the Company up to $4,500,000, and (ii) amend the maturity date

to the earlier of (x) the closing of the Business Combination or (y) August 28, 2024.

As of May 20, 2024, there was an outstanding balance of $4,227,500 under the Third A&R Promissory Note

As discussed above, on each of February 29, 2024, March 26, 2024, and April 26, 2024, the Company deposited $150,000 into the Trust account for the first

and second one-month extension from its Sponsor. February 28, 2024 to May 28, 2024 pursuant to the 2024 Charter Amendment Extensions.

The Company believes that the proceeds raised in the IPO, and the funds potentially available from loans from the Sponsor or any of their affiliates will be

sufficient to allow the Company to meet the expenditures required for operating its business. However, if the estimate of the costs to complete the proposed

Business Combination with Unifund is less than the actual amount necessary to do so, the Company may have insufficient funds available to operate its

business prior to the initial Business Combination. Moreover, the Company may need to obtain additional financing either to complete the Business

Combination or because the Company becomes obligated to redeem a significant number of public shares upon completion of the Business Combination, in

which case the Company may issue additional securities or incur debt in connection with such Business Combination. We cannot provide any assurance that

any new financing will be available to it on commercially acceptable terms, if at all.
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Table The $26,973 held outside of Contentsthe Trust Account as of March 31, 2024, in combination with the working capital deficit of $23,339,527, will not be

sufficient to allow the Company to operate for at least the next 12 months from the issuance of the unaudited condensed financial statements contained

elsewhere in this Form 10-Q, assuming that a Business Combination is not consummated during that time.

Giving effect to the 2024 Charter Amendment Proposals Extensions and subject to the Company making the required trust account deposits, we have until

February 28, 2024 August 28, 2024, the Termination Date, to complete an initial business combination (the “Termination Date”). combination. It is uncertain

whether the Company will be able to consummate the proposed business combination by the Termination Date. If we are unable to consummate an initial

business combination by the Termination Date we will, as promptly as reasonably possible but not more than ten business days thereafter, redeem 100% of the

outstanding shares of Class A common stock, at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account,

including any interest earned on the funds held in the Trust Account, less up to $100,000 of interest to pay dissolution expenses and net of interest that may be

used by us to pay our franchise and income taxes payable, divided by the number of then outstanding shares of Class A common stock, which redemption will

completely extinguish our public stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidation distributions, if any), subject to applicable

law and as further described herein, and then seek to dissolve and liquidate.
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Management has determined that the our liquidity condition, potential mandatory liquidation and subsequent dissolution raises raise substantial doubt about the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. These concern, assuming a Business Combination is not consummated before August 28, 2024. The

unaudited condensed financial statements contained elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q do not include any adjustments relating to the recovery

of the recorded assets or the classification of the liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Registration Rights

The holders of the Founder Shares, Private Placement Warrants and warrants that may be issued upon conversion of Working Capital Loans (and any Class A

common stock issuable upon the exercise of the Private Placement Warrants and warrants that may be issued upon conversion of Working Capital Loans) are

entitled to registration rights pursuant to a registration rights agreement entered into prior to the closing of the Initial Public Offering. The holders of these

securities may at any time, and from time to time, request in writing that the Company register the resale of any or all of these securities on Form S-3 or any

similar short form registration statement that may be available at such time; provided, however, that the Company shall not be obligated to effect such request

through an underwritten offering. In addition, the holders have certain “piggy-back” registration rights with respect to registration statements filed subsequent to

the completion of the initial business combination. The Company will bear the expenses incurred in connection with the filing of any such registration

statements.
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Deferred Underwriting Commissions

The underwriters were entitled to a deferred fee of $0.35 per unit, or $6,037,500 in the aggregate. Subject to the terms of the underwriting agreement, the

deferred fee was placed in our Trust Account to be released to the underwriters only upon the completion of our initial business combination. On May 8, 2023,

the Company received a letter providing notice from the representative of the underwriters, waiving any entitlement to their portion of the $6,037,500 deferred

underwriting fee that accrued from their participation as the underwriters of the IPO as they have not been involved in the Proposed Business Combination

process.

Administrative Services Agreement

We are party to an Administrative Services Agreement pursuant to which the Company has agreed to pay an affiliate of the Sponsor a total of $10,000 per

month, until the earlier of the completion of the initial Business Combination and the liquidation of the trust assets, for office space, secretarial and

administrative services. Upon completion of the initial Business Combination or liquidation, we will cease paying these monthly fees.

For each of the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company expensed $30,000 for the services provided through the Administrative Services

Agreement. As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the balance due under the agreement was $120,000 and $90,000, respectively, and was included

in Due to related party.

Conditional Guarantees

In connection with the Initial Extension and the Second Extension, the Company entered into a Conditional Guaranty Agreement in favor of the Noteholder in

respect of each Extension Note. Pursuant to each Conditional Guaranty Agreement, the Company has agreed, subject to the Company’s consummation of an

Initial Business Combination prior to the Termination Date), Date, to guarantee the payment by the Sponsor to the Noteholder when due of all principal and

accrued interest owed to the Noteholder under the respective Extension Note. Upon consummation of the Business Combination, the Company will become

the primary obligor under the Extension Notes and will be required to pay all principal and accrued interest owed to the Noteholder. The Company’s obligations

under each Conditional Guaranty Agreement will terminate upon the earliest to occur of (i) the payment in full or discharge and termination of the Extension

Note, (ii) the failure to consummate an initial business combination prior to the Termination Date or (iii) immediately prior to the voluntary or involuntary

liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company. The Noteholder has waived any right, title, interest and claim of any kind as it relates to the Trust

Account.

The Company accounts for the Conditional Guarantees in accordance with the guidance in ASC 460, “Guarantees” (“ASC 460”) as the Conditional Guarantees

contingently require the Company to make payments to a guaranteed party. As required by ASC 460, at the inception, the Company assessed the need to

recognize a liability for the contingent component of the guarantee (the obligation to make future payments upon the occurrence of certain events) in
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accordance with the guidance in ASC 450, “Contingencies” (“ASC 450”). Under ASC 450, a Company is required to record a liability if it is probable that the

Company would have to make a payment under the guarantee, and the payment can be reasonably estimated. See Note 4 to the unaudited condensed

financial statements contained elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further detail as it relates to regarding the Conditional Guarantees.

As of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company deemed that the payment of the Extension Notes on behalf of the Sponsor

was probable and recorded a liability of $3,706,339, $3,983,096 and $3,845,474, respectively, including $3,450,000 of principal, and $256,339 $533,096 and

$395,474 of accrued interest related to the Extension Notes. Notes through March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

Registration Rights

The holders of the Founder Shares, Private Placement Warrants and warrants that may be issued upon conversion of Working Capital Loans (and any Class A

common stock issuable upon the exercise of the Private Placement Warrants and warrants that may be issued upon conversion of Working Capital Loans) are

entitled to registration rights pursuant to a registration rights agreement entered into prior to the closing of the IPO. The holders of these securities may at any

time, and from time to time, request in writing that the Company register the resale of any or all of these securities on Form S-3 or any similar short form

registration statement that may be available at such time; provided, however, that the Company shall not be obligated to effect such request through an

underwritten offering. In addition, the holders have certain “piggy-back” registration rights with respect to registration statements filed subsequent to the

completion of the initial business combination. The Company will bear the expenses incurred in connection with the filing of any such registration statements.
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Working Capital Loan –Promissory Note

See “—Liquidity, Capital Resources and Going Concern,” above for a description of the Promissory Note, as subsequently amended and restated by the

Amended Promissory note, the Second A&R Promissory Note and the Third A&R Promissory Note) issued by the Company in connection with amounts

received in the form of working capital loans during the three months ended September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024. The Company recorded the interest expense

of $37,200 and $112,200 $184,500 on the Amended Promissory Note for the three and nine month periods months ended September 30, 2023,

respectively. March 31, 2024.

Administrative Services Agreement 37

We have entered into an Administrative Services Agreement pursuant to which the Company has agreed to pay an affiliateTable of the Sponsor a total of

$10,000 per month, until the earlier of the completion of the initial Business Combination and the liquidation of the trust assets, for office space, secretarial and

administrative services. Upon completion of the initial Business Combination or liquidation, we will cease paying these monthly fees. Contents

For the for the three month and nine month periods ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, the Company expensed $30,000 and $90,000, respectively, for the

services provided through the Administrative Services Agreement. As of September 30, 2023, the balance due under the agreement was $60,000 and was

included in Due to related party. As of December 31, 2022, the Company had no amounts due to the Sponsor related to the Administrative Services

Agreement.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Company prepares its preparation of financial statements and accompanying notes in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America, which require U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions about future events that affect the reported

amounts. Estimations amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Our management

believes that the estimates, judgment and assumptions used are considered reasonable based upon information available at the time they are made. Actual

results could materially differ from those estimates. We have identified the following critical accounting estimates based on, among other things, its impact on

the portrayal of the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, or liquidity, as well as the degree of difficulty, subjectivity, policies and complexity in its

deployment. Critical accounting estimates address accounting matters that are inherently uncertain due estimates:
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Class A Common Stock Subject to unknown future resolution of such matters. Management routinely discusses the development, selection, and disclosure of

each critical accounting estimates. There have been no significant changes to the Company’s estimates and assumptions during the three and nine-months

ended September 30, 2023 other than as described in “Guarantee” below. Reference should be made to the financial statements and related notes included in

the 2022 Form 10-K for a full description of other significant accounting policies.

GuaranteePossible Redemption

The Company accounts for the Conditional Guarantees its common stock subject to possible redemption in accordance with the guidance in ASC 460,

“Guarantees” (“ASC 460”) Topic 480 “Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity”. Common stock subject to mandatory redemption, if any, is classified as the

Conditional Guarantees contingently require the Company to make payments to a guaranteed party. As required by ASC 460, at the inception, the Company

assessed the need to recognize a liability for instrument and is measured at fair value. Conditionally redeemable common stock (including common stock that

features redemption rights that is either within the contingent component control of the guarantee (the obligation holder or subject to make future

payments redemption upon the occurrence of uncertain events not solely within the Company’s control) is classified as temporary equity. At all other times,

common stock is classified as stockholders’ equity. The Company’s common stock features certain events) redemption rights that are considered to be outside

of the Company’s control and subject to occurrence of uncertain future events. Accordingly, as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, common stock

subject to possible redemption is presented at redemption value as temporary equity, outside of the stockholders’ equity section of the Company’s unaudited

condensed balance sheet.

The Class A common stock subject to possible redemption reflected on the unaudited condensed balance sheet as of March 31, 2024 is reconciled in

accordance the following table:

Gross proceeds      $ 172,500,000

Less:

Class A common stock issuance costs   (10,100,667)

Fair value of Public Warrants at issuance   (4,672,162)

Redemptions of Class A common stock   (108,231,653)

Plus:

Re-measurement of carrying value to redemption value   18,222,829

Accretion of trust earnings   14,616,106

Class A common stock subject to possible redemption $ 82,334,453

The Class A common stock subject to possible redemption reflected on the unaudited condensed balance sheet as of December 31, 2023 is reconciled in the

following table:

Gross proceeds     $ 172,500,000

Less:

Class A common stock issuance costs   (10,100,667)

Fair value of Public Warrants at issuance   (4,672,162)

Redemptions of Class A common stock   (41,057,655)

Plus:     

Re-measurement of carrying value to redemption value   18,222,829

Accretion of trust earnings   12,919,599

Class A common stock subject to possible redemption $ 147,811,944

Net loss Per Share of Common Stock

We comply with accounting and disclosure requirements of FASB ASC Topic 260, “Earnings Per Share.” Net loss per common share is computed by dividing

net loss by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. We have not considered the effect of the warrants sold in

the Initial Public Offering and Private Placement in the calculation of diluted income per share, because the exercise of the warrants are contingent upon the

occurrence of future events and the inclusion of such warrants
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would be anti- dilutive. Accretion associated with the guidance in ASC 450, “Contingencies” (“ASC 450”). Under ASC 450, a Company redeemable Class A

common stock is required to record a liability if it is probable that excluded from earnings per share as the Company would have to make a payment under the

guarantee, and the payment can be reasonably estimated. See Note 4 for further detail as it relates to the Conditional Guarantees. redemption value

approximates fair value.

As of September 30, 2023, the Company deemed that the payment of the Extension Notes on behalf of the Sponsor was probable and recorded a liability of

$3,706,339, including $3,450,000 of principal and $256,339 of accrued interest related to the Extension Notes.

Recent accounting standards

In August 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2020-06, Debt — Debt with Conversion and

Other Options (Subtopic 470-20) and Derivatives and Hedging — Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40) (“ASU 2020-06”) to simplify accounting

for certain financial instruments. ASU 2020-06 eliminates the current models that require separation of beneficial conversion and cash conversion features from

convertible instruments and simplifies the derivative scope exception guidance pertaining to equity classification of contracts in an entity’s own equity. The new

standard also introduces additional disclosures for convertible debt and freestanding instruments that are indexed to and settled in an entity’s own equity. ASU

2020-06 amends the diluted earnings per share guidance, including the requirement to use the if-converted method for all convertible instruments. ASU 2020-

06 is effective January 1, 2024 and should be applied on a full or modified retrospective basis, with
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early adoption permitted beginning on January 1, 2021. Management is currently evaluating the new guidance but does The Company adopted ASU 2020-06

on January 1, 2024, which did not expect the adoption of this guidance to have a material impact on its financial statements.

In December 2023, the Company’s FASB issued ASU 2023-09 “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures,” that addresses requests

for improved income tax disclosures from investors that use the financial statements to make capital allocation decisions. Public entities must adopt the new

guidance for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. The amendments in this ASU must be applied on a retrospective basis to all prior periods

presented in the financial statements and early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact that the adoption of this

standard will have on its unaudited condensed financial statements.

Management does not believe that any other recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting standards, if currently adopted, would have a material effect on

our unaudited condensed financial statements.

Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012

Under the JOBS Act, an “emerging growth company” can take advantage of an extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting

standards. This provision allows an “emerging growth company” to delay the adoption of new or revised accounting standards that have different transition

dates for public and private companies until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. We meet the definition of an “emerging growth

company” and have elected to use this extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards until the earlier of the date we (x) are

no longer an emerging growth company, or (y) affirmatively and irrevocably opt out of the extended transition period provided in the JOBS Act. As a result, our

unaudited condensed financial statements and the reported results of operations contained therein may not be directly comparable to those of other public

companies.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act and are not required to provide the information otherwise required under

this item.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Limitations on effectiveness of controls and procedures

In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed

and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. In addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures
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must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and that management is required to apply judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls and

procedures relative to their costs.
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Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed with the objective of ensuring that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the

Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time period specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and

procedures are also designed with the objective of ensuring that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including the chief

executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

In connection with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer (our

“Certifying Officers”), evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange

Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Based upon that evaluation, and as a result of the material weaknesses

described below and the disclosure control deficiency identified in the Company’s Form 10-Q/A filed with the SEC on February 14, 2024, our Certifying Officers

concluded that, as of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Previously Identified Material Weaknesses

A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting internal control over financial reporting such

that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of its financial statements would not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. These

deficiencies could result in additional material misstatements to our financial statements that could not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In As previously reported, in connection with the preparation of our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included in the Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2023, a material error was identified in the calculation of the deferred underwriting commission during the

second quarter of 2023 as result of not accounting for a contractual arrangement under which the underwriters agreed with the Company to waive any

entitlement to their portion of the deferred underwriting fee. As a result of this error, management concluded that existing controls failed and that a material

weakness exists in our internal control over financial reporting related to the identification of material contractual arrangements impacting the Company’s

financial statements. This error was corrected prior to the issuance of the unaudited consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June

30, 2023.
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During the third quarter of 2023, the Company withdrew $1,075,252 of interest and dividend income earned in the Trust Account. Such amounts Withdrawn

Trust Funds were restricted for payment of the Company’s income tax liabilities as provided in the Company’s certificate of incorporation and the terms of the

Trust Agreement. During the three months ended September 30, 2023, the Company mistakenly used $752,885 of these funds the Withdrawn Trust Funds for

the payments of general operating expenses counter to the terms of the Trust Agreement. Such amounts Subsequent to the end of the quarter ended

September 30, 2023, the Company disbursed an aggregate of $322,267, the balance of the Withdrawn Trust Funds, for payment of general operating

expenses between October 1, 2023 and November 6, 2023. The Withdrawn Trust Funds were disbursed without appropriate review and approval to ensure

that the disbursements were made in accordance with the Trust Agreement. Agreement ensuring an appropriate safeguarding of assets. As a result of this

issue, the foregoing, management concluded that the existing control structure failed and that a material weakness exists in our internal control over financial

reporting related to the review and approval of cash disbursements.

A  In addition, the disbursement of the balance of the Withdrawn Trust Funds subsequent to September 30, 2023 was not reported in the Company’s Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2023, originally filed with the SEC on December 19, 2023. This omission resulted in the
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restatement of the Company’s unaudited condensed financial statements for the quarter ended September 30, 2023. The Company’s controls over the

completeness of subsequent events disclosure failed and as a result of this restatement, management concluded that there was an additional material

weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in  our internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a relating

to the reporting of material misstatement subsequent event information in the notes to the financial statements.
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our financial statements that could not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Contents

Remediation Process Efforts to Address Previously Identified Material Weaknesses

To address this these material weaknesses, management has devoted, and plans to continue to devote, significant effort and resources to the remediation and

improvement of its internal control over financial reporting and to enhance reporting. In particular, management’s plans include enhanced controls and

improve improved internal communications within the Company and its financial reporting advisors and related to the identification of any new contractual

arrangements, as well as controls to ensure the Company has oversight of the cash availability for operating needs. We can offer no assurance needs,

including more clearly designating in the Company’s internal books and records the cash that these initiatives will ultimately have is restricted in its use and the

intended effects. implementation of an additional layer of review of payments for operating expenses to ensure that restricted cash is not used for payment of

general operating expenses, and conducting remedial training for management, relevant staff and service providers to reiterate and reinforce the terms of the

Trust Agreement. Management’s remediation plan also includes the addition of a control requiring the Company’s audit committee to approve any withdrawals

from the Trust Account and requiring the placement of such withdrawn funds in a restricted account for the payment of taxes. To address the material

weakness identified in connection with the restatement of the Company’s financial statements for the quarter ended September 30, 2023, management has

added a control requiring enhanced documentation of discussions between management, the Company’s advisors and the Company’s audit committee

regarding subsequent events to ensure appropriate consideration of the completeness of subsequent event disclosures.

As of September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024, we continue to implement our remediation plan and we believe we have put in place the processes, procedures and

reviews necessary to address the material weaknesses, however until we the applicable controls operate for a sufficient period of time and management has

concluded, through testing, that these controls are able to test the operational effectiveness of the controls, operating effectively, the material weaknesses will

not be considered remediated. We can offer no assurance that these initiatives will ultimately have the intended effects. We are committed to the continuous

improvement of our internal control over financial reporting and will continue to diligently review our internal control over financial reporting.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Other than changes that have resulted from the material weaknesses remediation activities noted Except as described above under “Remediation Efforts to

Address Previously Identified Material Weaknesses,” there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and

15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the quarter ended September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024, that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially

affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

None.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q include the risk disclosed under Part I, Item 1A,

“Risk Factors” in our 2022 2023 Form 10-K, which information is incorporated herein by reference. Any of these factors could result in a significant or material

adverse effect on our business. Additional risks could arise that may also affect our business or ability to consummate an initial Business Combination. Other

than as the below, as As of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, there have been no material changes to the risk factors previously disclosed in our

2022 2023 Form 10-K. We may disclose additional changes to such risk factors or disclose additional risk factors from time to time in our future filings with the

SEC.

For a discussion of risks factors related to proposed Unifund Business Combination, see the Registration Statement (File No. 333-273362) initially filed by the

Company and the NewPubco with the SEC on July 21, 2023 and subsequently amended.

As of September 30, 2023, the Company held $322,367 outside of the Trust Account (reserved for tax payments) and had a working capital deficit of

$14,273,909, which excludes current liabilities associated with franchise and income taxes, which is not sufficient to allow the Company to operate for at least

the next 12 months from the issuance of the condensed financial statements contained elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, assuming that the

proposed Business Combination is not consummated during that time. The Company has incurred and expects to continue to incur significant costs in pursuit

of consummating the proposed Business Combination. While the Company expects to have sufficient access to additional sources of capital under the Working

Capital Loans, there is no current commitment on the part of any financing source to provide additional capital and no assurances can be provided that such

additional capital will ultimately be available if necessary. Further, if a business combination is not consummated by December 28, 2023, unless further

extended pursuant to the Charter Amendment Proposals, there will be a mandatory liquidation and subsequent dissolution of the Company. These conditions

raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

If the Company is unable to raise additional capital, it may be required to take additional measures to conserve liquidity, which could include, but are not limited

to, curtailing operations, reducing overhead expenses and suspending the pursuit of the proposed Business Combination. The Company cannot provide any

assurance that financing sources will be available to it on commercially acceptable terms or if at all, or that it will be able to consummate the proposed

 Business Combination within the Combination Period. Management has determined that the liquidity condition, potential mandatory liquidation and subsequent

dissolution raises substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The condensed financial statements included in this Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q do not include any adjustments relating to the recovery of the recorded assets or the classification of the liabilities that might be

necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

We have identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. If we are unable to develop and maintain an effective system

of internal control over financial reporting, we may not be able to accurately report our financial results in a timely manner, which may adversely

affect investor confidence in us and materially and adversely affect our business and operating results.

As described elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we have identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting related to

the identification of material contractual arrangements impacting the Company’s financial statements and related to the review and approval of cash

disbursements, specifically the Company’s use of trust account funds restricted for payment of the Company’s income tax liabilities for general operating

expenses counter to the terms of the Trust Agreement.  As a result of these material weaknesses, our management has concluded that our disclosure controls

and procedures were not effective as of September 30, 2023. See Part I. Item 4. Controls and Procedures included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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We have taken a number of measures to remediate the material weaknesses described herein. However, the elements of our remediation plan can only be

accomplished over time, and we can offer no assurance that these initiatives will ultimately have the intended effects. If we are unable to remediate our

material weaknesses in a timely manner or we identify additional material weaknesses, we may be unable to provide required financial information in a timely

and reliable manner and we may incorrectly report financial information. Likewise, if our financial statements are not filed on a timely basis, we could be subject

to sanctions or investigations by the stock exchange on which our Class A common stock is listed, the SEC or other regulatory authorities. The existence of

material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting could adversely affect our reputation or investor perceptions of us, which could have a negative

effect on the trading price of our shares. As a result of the material weaknesses in our internal controls over financial reporting described above, we face

potential for litigation or other disputes which may include, among others, claims invoking the federal and state securities laws, claims related to the preparation

of our financial statements, contractual claims, including as a result of withdrawing funds from the trust account for purposes not authorized under the terms of
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the Trust Agreement. As of the date of this annual report, we have no knowledge of any such litigation or dispute. However, we can provide no assurance that

such litigation or dispute will not arise in the future. Any such litigation or dispute, whether successful or not, could have a material adverse effect on our

business, results of operations and financial condition or our ability to complete an initial business combination.

We can give no assurance that the measures we have taken and plan to take in the future will remediate the material weaknesses identified or that any

additional material weaknesses or restatements of financial results will not arise in the future due to a failure to implement and maintain adequate internal

control over financial reporting or circumvention of these controls. Even if we are successful in strengthening our controls and procedures, in the future those

controls and procedures may not be adequate to prevent or identify irregularities or errors or to facilitate the fair presentation of our financial statements.

If we identify any new material weaknesses in the future, any such newly identified material weakness could limit our ability to prevent or detect a misstatement

of our accounts or disclosures that could result in a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements. In such case, we may be unable to

maintain compliance with securities law requirements regarding timely filing of periodic reports in addition to applicable stock exchange listing requirements,

investors may lose confidence in our financial reporting and our share price may decline as a result. We cannot assure you that any measures we may take in

the future, will be sufficient to avoid potential future material weaknesses.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

There were no unregistered sales of our equity securities during the three months ended March 31, 2024, that were not otherwise disclosed in a Current Report

on Form 8-K.

Use of Proceeds and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities from the IPO

On November 29, 2021, we consummated our IPO of 17,250,000 units, including 2,250,000 units sold pursuant to the full exercise of the underwriters’ over-

allotment option. The units sold were registered pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-260343), as amended, declared effective by the

SEC on November 23, 2021. Simultaneously with the closing of the IPO, we completed the private sale of 6,333,333 private placement warrants at a purchase

price of $1.50 per private placement warrant to the Sponsor. No underwriting discounts or commissions were paid with respect to the private placement. The

private placement warrants were issued pursuant to the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.

The sale of the units in the IPO and the concurrent sale of the private placement warrants generated gross proceeds to the Company of $182,000,000,

consisting of $172,500,000 from the sale of the units and $9,500,000 from the sale of the private placement warrants. In connection with the closing of the IPO,

we paid a total of $3,450,000 in underwriting discounts and commissions and $600,000 $943,614 for other costs and expenses related to the IPO. In addition,

the underwriter agreed to defer $6,037,500 in underwriting discounts and commissions. No payments for such expenses were made directly or indirectly to

(i) any of our officers or directors or their associates, (ii) any persons owning 10% or more of any class of our equity securities, or (iii) any of our affiliates.

There has been no material change in the expected use of the net proceeds from our IPO, as described in our final IPO prospectus, filed with the SEC on

November 24, 2021.

In connection with the shareholder vote to approve the Extension Amendment Proposal at the 2023 Special Meeting on August 24, 2023, the holders of

3,825,869 shares of Class A common stock exercised their right to redeem such shares at a per share redemption price of approximately $10.73, and an

aggregate of $41,057,655 was withdrawn from the trust account. Following the 2023 Special Meeting and associated redemptions, we had approximately

$144.9 million left remaining in the Trust Account. Account

There were no unregistered sales In connection with the shareholder vote to approve the Extension Amendment Proposal at the 2024 Special Meeting on

February 26, 2024, the holders of our equity securities during 6,032,023 shares of Class A common stock exercised their right to redeem such shares at a per

share redemption price of approximately $11.14, and an aggregate of $67.2 million was withdrawn from the three months ended September 30, 2023, that

were not otherwise disclosed trust account. Following the 2024 Special Meeting and associated redemptions, we had approximately $82.7 million left remaining

in a Current Report on Form 8-K. the Trust Account.
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Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

(a) None.

(b) None.

(c) During the three months ended March 31, 2024, no director or “officer” (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) under the Exchange Act) of the Company adopted or

terminated a “Rule 10b5-1 tradingarrangement” or “non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement,” as each term is defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K.
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2.1† Business Combination

Agreement, dated as

of May 19, 2023, by

and among the

Company, Unifund

Financial

Technologies, Inc.,

Unifund Holdings, LLC

and USV, LLC

10-Q 001-41100 2.1 08/14/23 Business

Combination

Agreement,

dated as of May

19, 2023, by

and among the

Company,

Unifund

Financial

Technologies,

Inc., Unifund

Holdings, LLC

and USV, LLC

10-Q 001-41100 2.1 08/14/23
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2.2 Waiver and

Consent to

Business

Combination

Agreement and

Plan of Merger,

dated as of

February 25,

2024, by and

among Everest

Consolidator

Acquisition

Corporation,

Everest

Consolidator

Sponsor, LLC

and Unifund

Holdings, LLC.

8-K 001-41100 2.1 02/26/24

3.1 Amended and

Restated Certificate of

Incorporation

8-K 001-41100 3.1 11/29/21   Amended and

Restated

Certificate of

Incorporation

8-K 001-41100 3.1 11/29/21  

       

       

3.2 Amendment to the

Amended and

Restated Certificate of

Incorporation of the

Company.

8-K 001-41100 3.1 08/25/23 Certificate of

Amendment to

the Amended

and Restated

Certificate of

Incorporation of

the Company.

8-K 001-41100 3.1 08/25/23

3.3 Amended and

Restated Bylaws

8-K 001-41100 3.2 11/29/21   Certificate of

Amendment to

the Amended

and Restated

Certificate of

Incorporation

8-K 001-41100 3.1 2/26/24

3.4 Amended and

Restated

Bylaws

8-K 001-41100 3.2 11/29/21  
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10.1 Amendment to the

Investment

Management Trust

Agreement, dated as

of August 25, 2023, by

and between Everest

Consolidator

Acquisition

Corporation and

Equiniti Trust LLC

(f/k/a American Stock

Transfer & Trust

Company, LLC).

8-K 001-41100 10.1 08/25/23 Second

Amended and

Restated

Promissory

Note, dated

March 26, 2023,

issued by

Everest

Consolidator

Acquisition

Corporation to

Everest

Consolidator

Sponsor, LLC

8-K 001-41100 10.1 3/26/24

10.2 Amended and

Restated Promissory

Note, dated December

7, 2023, issued by

Everest Consolidator

Acquisition

Corporation to Everest

Consolidator Sponsor,

LLC

8-K 001-41100 10.1 12/13/23 Second

Amendment to

the Investment

Management

Trust

Agreement,

dated as of

February 26,

2024, by and

between

Everest

Consolidator

Acquisition

Corporation and

American Stock

Transfer & Trust

Company, LLC.

8-K 001-41100 10.1 2/26/24

         

         

10.3 Commitment

Letter, dated

May 8, 2024,

issued by

Everest

Consolidator

Sponsor LLC to

Everest

Consolidator

Acquisition

Corporation.

8-K 001-41100 10.1 5/10/24
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10.4 Third Amended

and Restated

Promissory

Note, dated May

10, 2024, issued

by Everest

Consolidator

Acquisition

Corporation to

Everest

Consolidator

Sponsor, LLC

8-K 001-41100 10.2 5/10/24

31.1 Certification of

Principal Executive

Officer and Principal

Financial Officer

pursuant to Rule 13a-

14(a)/15d-14(a) 

        * Certification of

Principal

Executive

Officer and

Principal

Financial Officer

pursuant to Rule

13a-14(a)/15d-

14(a) 

        *

           

32.1 Certification of

Principal Executive

Officer and Principal

Financial Officer

pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

Section 1350

        **

           

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance

Document  – the

instance document

does not appear in the

Interactive Data File

because its XBRL tags

are embedded within

the Inline XBRL

document

        *

           

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy

Extension Schema

Document

        *

           

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy

Extension Calculation

Linkbase Document

        *

           

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy

Extension Definition

Linkbase Document

        *
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32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal

Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

**

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document  – the instance document

does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL

tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document

*

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document *

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

Document

*

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

Document

*

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document         *

             

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

Document

        *

             

104 Cover Page  Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL

and contained in Exhibit 101)

        *

* Filed herewith.

** This certification is being furnished solely to accompany this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and are not deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the

Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section, nor shall they be deemed incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities

Act of the Exchange Act.

† Schedules to this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K. The Registrant hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any omitted

schedules to the Commission upon request.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned

thereunto duly authorized.

EVEREST CONSOLIDATOR ACQUISITION CORPORATION

Date: December 19, 2023 May 20, 2024 By: /s/ Adam Dooley

    Adam Dooley

(Principal Executive Officer,

    Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Adam Dooley, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Everest Consolidator Acquisition Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial

condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-15(e)  and  15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the

registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to

ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,

particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness

of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the

registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the

registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to

adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.

Date: December 19, 2023 May 20, 2024 By: /s/ Adam Dooley

Adam Dooley

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer and

Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Everest Consolidator Acquisition Corporation (the “Company”) for the quarter ended September

30, 2023 March 31, 2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as

adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: December 19, 2023 May 20, 2024 By: /s/ Adam Dooley

Adam Dooley

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer and

Principal Accounting Officer)
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